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VALUES
1. Customers : Our commitment to meet customers’ requirements in terms of our product quality and services. 

2. People : Our commitment is to maximise the potential workforce by providing conducive working environment.

3. Quality : Our commitment is to provide products and services which are in compliance to the international standards.

4. Productivity : Our commitment is to optimise available resources within the company.

5. Competitiveness :  Our commitment is to be acknowledged as a renowned manufacturer and supplier within our industry.

6. Legal and Statutory : Our commitment is to comply with relevant legal and statutory requirements.

7. Risk and Management : Our commitment is to manage risks effectively to adhere to our Quality.

VISION
To be a preferred organisation, well recognised in the business 
providing applicable solutions and values to our customers to enhance 
customer satisfaction.

MISSION
To improve our products’ quality and services by meeting our customers 

industry recognition.

GROUP BERHAD  
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Stock Code: 7073WC
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CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

GROUP BERHAD  
(  Incorporated in Malaysia

Seacera Properties Sdn. Bhd. 
(100% Wholly Owned)

Duta Skyline Sdn. Bhd.
(100% Wholly Owned)

Duta Nilai Holdings Sdn. Bhd. 
(100% Wholly Owned)

Seacera Ceramics Sdn. Bhd. 
(100% Wholly Owned)

Seacera Porcelain Sdn. Bhd. 
(100% Wholly Owned)

Seacera Tiles Marketing Sdn. Bhd. 
(100% Wholly Owned)

Seacera Polymer Sdn. Bhd. 
(100% Wholly Owned)Trading and marketing of all 

kinds of tiles, building material 
products, personal protective 

equipment and foods & 
beverages.

TRADING DIVISION01

Seacera Tech Sdn. Bhd. 
(100% Wholly Owned)

Seacera Builders Sdn. Bhd.
(100% Wholly Owned)

Provision of building works, civil 
& structural engineering, interior 

decoration and conservation.

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION02

Owns several strategically 
located plots of land and 

buildings held for development 
and/ or investment  properties.

PROPERTIES DIVISION03
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DIRECTORS’ 
PROFILE

DATO’ DR AZIRUL SALIHIN BIN ANUAR

Nationality  : Malaysian
Age   : 42 Years Old
Gender : Male
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar was appointed to 
the Board on 16 January 2020. He holds a Medical 
Bachelor (Surgery) from University Malaya. Dato’ 
Dr Azirul Salihin was appointed as Marketing 
and Executive Director of several private limited 
companies. Since 2018 until present, he holds 
directorship in other public company, Vertice Bhd. 

He is the Chairman of the Board of Directors, 
a member of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Company.

Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar does not have 
any family relationship with any director and/
or major shareholder(s), nor does he have any 

convictions for any offences within the past 5 years 
and no sanction or penalty imposed on him by 

ended 30 June 2020.

MAH SOON CHAI

Nationality  : Malaysian
Age   : 68 Years Old
Gender : Male
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mah Soon Chai was appointed to the Board on 
16 January 2020. He holds a Degree in Economics, 
and Post Graduate Degree in Economics Statics 
from University of New England, Australia.

Since his return to Malaysia in 1995, he was mainly 
involved in telecommunication industry working for 
TIME group of companies after which he branched 
out into starting his own company. His company 

machine for mobile prepaid top up cards.

Currently, he is a freelance consulting services 
provider for companies that wishes to apply for ISO 

He is the member of Audit and Risk Management 
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Company.

Mah Soon Chai does not have any directorship 
in other public companies. He does not have 
any family relationship with any director and/
or major shareholder(s), nor does he have any 

convictions for any offences within the past 5 years 
and no sanction or penalty imposed on him by 

ended 30 June 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ 
PROFILE

CHUA YEONG LIN

Nationality  : Malaysian
Age   : 42 Years Old
Gender : Male
Independent Non-Executive Director

Chua Yeong Lin was appointed to the Board on 16 
January 2020. He holds a Degree in Accountancy, 
University Utara of Malaysia.

Currently, he is the owner of SYL Business Solution, 

Commission of Malaysia and also the owner of CYL 

Malaysian Institute of Accountant. Currently, he 
holds directorship in Iqzan Holding Berhad (Formerly 
known as Ire-Tex Corporation Berhad).

He is the Chairman of Audit and Risk Management 
Committee and member of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Chua Yeong Lin does not have any family relationship 
with any director and/or major shareholder(s), 

Company. He has no convictions for any offences 
within the past 5 years and no sanction or penalty 
imposed on him by any regulatory bodies during 

NICHOLAS WONG YEW KHID

Nationality  : Malaysian
Age   : 39 Years Old
Gender : Male
Independent Non-Executive Director

Nicholas Wong Yew Khid was appointed to the 
Board on 29 November 2019. He holds a Bachelors 
Degree in Engineering, Victoria Brooke University.

Currently, he holds directorship in DGB Asia Berhad 
as Executive Director. He also is managing his own 
company in Automotive, Sport and Entertainment 
industry. In 2013, he was appointed as a Marketing 
Director with Lightwood Resources Sdn Bhd. 

He is the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and member of Audit and Risk 
Management Committee of the Company

Nicholas Wong Yew Khid does not have any 
family relationship with any director and/or major 

interest with the Company. He has no convictions for 
any offences within the past 5 years and no sanction 
or penalty imposed on him by any regulatory bodies 
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PROFILE OF 
KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

  ZULKARNIN BIN ARIFFIN
Position

Nationality :  Malaysian

Gender / Age :  Male / 47

:  Bachelor of Accounting (Hons) degree from International Islamic University, Malaysia (IIUM). 

Malaysian Institute of Accountant (MIA).

Working
Experience:

:  He joined KPMG in 1997 upon graduation and left in 2000. Subsequently, he served as an 
Assistant Manager, Finance in Malaysia Mining Corporation Berhad from 2000 to 2003. Prior to 
joining Seacera Group Berhad in September 2005, he was with Furqan Business Organisation 
Berhad, a company listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Property 
Development) as Senior Manager, Group Finance.

Directorship in public and listed issuers :  None

Additional Information of the Key Senior Management (KSM) of Seacera Group Berhad:-
1. Family Relationship : Save as disclosed, none of the KSM has any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of Seacera 

Group Berhad.

: 

3. Conviction for Offences : 

4. Public Sanction or 
Penalty

: 
ended 30 June 2020.

  MOHD FAIZAL BIN MD AMIN
Position :  Technical & Sales Manager

Nationality :  Malaysian

Gender / Age :  Male / 40

:  Degree in Ceramics Design, University of Technology Mara (UITM)

Working
Experience:

: He joined Johnson Suisse in the Research & Development Department (R&D) from 2002 until 
2004. After that, he joined Seacera in 2004 starting as a Junior R&D Executive. In 2006, he 
was promoted as Quality Assurance (QA) and R&D Executive. He also has experience as a 
Technical Manager and Sales Manager at Seacera and he has almost 19 years of working 
experiences in tiles industry.

Directorship in public and listed issuers :  None

  MOHD AMIR BIN ABDULLAH
Position :  Finance Manager

Nationality :  Malaysian

Gender / Age :  Male / 41

:  Bachelor of Accounting, University Utara Malaysia (UUM)

Working
Experience: as senior auditor in 2006. Subsequently, he joined Samlong Chemicals Sdn Bhd (previously 

promoted to Assistant Manager Accounts in September 2006. He joined Seacera Group 
Berhad as Finance Manager in December 2007 until now

Directorship in public and listed issuers :  None

ASMAWATI BINTI ABD RAHAMAN
Position :  Group Human Resources

Nationality :  Malaysian

Gender / Age :  Female / 44

:  Diploma in Technology Management & Administration, University of Technology Malaysia 
(UTM)

Working
Experience:

:  She joined Seacera as the Manager of Human Resources & Administration on 1st April 2014. 
Puan Asma has 24 years of experience in the HR and Administration management

Directorship in public and listed issuers :  None
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CHAIRMAN’S  
STATEMENT

OVERVIEW

For the FYE 30 June 2020, Seacera recorded revenue of 

year of RM20.8 million and dividend expense of RCPS of 
RM8.4 million.

The details on the performance of each division are 
disclosed under the management and discussion 
analysis at page 10 to page 11.

OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 pandemic has severely affected the 
global economy with growth projected to contract 
by 4.9% in 2020. For the second quarter of 2020 (“Q2 
2020”), almost all countries recorded a negative growth. 
Economies of advanced countries contracted 8% with 
the US declining by 9.5%. With the exception of China 
(3.2%), emerging countries contracted by 5%.

The Malaysian economy contracted 17.1% during Q2 
2020 attributed to weak domestic demand which shrunk 
18.7%. Furthermore, sluggish external demand following 
heightened uncertainty contributed to the subdued 
economic performance during the quarter. However, 

improvements from -28.6% in April to -19.5% in May and 
subsequently to -3.2% in June 2020. 

• Private consumption declined 18.5% due to reduced 
household spending with the implementation of the 
Movement Control Order (“MCO”). 

•  Private investment remained subdued at 26.4% largely 
due to lower capital outlays, affected by uncertainty 
caused by the outbreak. 

• Public consumption expanded 2.3% on account 
of higher expenditure related to health, safety and 
security segments. 

•  Public investment contracted further to 38.7% mainly 
due to lower capital spending by public corporations.

On the production side, all sectors in the economy 
recorded sluggish performance except agriculture. 

•  The services sector contracted 16.2% weighed 
down by wholesale and retail trade (-23.3%); food & 
beverages and accommodation (-40.9%); as well as 
transportation and storage (-44.8%).

 • The manufacturing sector declined 18.3% affected by 
lower production of electrical, electronic and optical 
products (-8.8%); petroleum, chemical, rubber and 
plastic products (-13.3%); as well as non-metallic 
mineral products, basic metal and fabricated metal 
products (-40.2%). Nonetheless, vegetable and 
animal oils & fats and food processing industries 
expanded 9.2% supported by increasing demand for 
food-related products. 

To the shareholders of Seacera Group Berhad

“Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Seacera Group 
Berhad (“Seacera” or “Group”), I would like to 
present to you our Annual Report and the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Group for the financial 
year ended (“FYE”) 30 June 2020.”
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Chairman’s Statement (continue)

44.5% following contraction in all subsectors: civil 
engineering (-59.4%), residential buildings (-39.2%), 
non-residential buildings (-36.8%) and special trade 
activities (-29.8%). 

•  The agriculture sector grew 1% supported by expansion 
in the oil palm (7.5%), other agriculture (4.5%) and 
livestock (1.3%) subsectors. On thecontrary, forestry 
and logging as well as rubber subsectors contracted 
22.3% and 22.1%, respectively. 

•  The mining sector recorded a double-digit decline 
of 20% due to lower production of crude oil and 
condensate (-21.5%) as well as natural gas (-18.7%).

Total trade contracted 14.7% to RM393 billion while trade 
surplus decreased 9.1% to RM27.6 billion. Gross exports 
declined 14.3% due to lower exports of manufactured, 
agriculture and mining goods in line with the subdued 
performance of global trade. At the same time, 
gross imports dropped 15.1% due to lower imports of 
intermediate and consumption goods. 

The current account remained in surplus of RM7.6 
billion or 2.5% of gross national income (“GNI”) mainly 

in income account.

(Source: Malaysian Economy Second Quarter 2020, 
Ministry of Finance Malaysia)
 

PROSPECTS

Group has been exploring new opportunities and 
holding strategic discussions with its professional advisers 
to review its capital and business structure to gear itself 
to exit the Practice Note 17 (“PN17”) status. Currently 
the Group actively pursuing the formalisation and 
implementation of the regularisation plan and it requires 
deep consideration to reach the best outcomes. The 
past performance and current accomplishment are 
detailed in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
section.

In June 2020, the Group further announced, its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Seacera Polymer Sdn Bhd (“SPSB”) 
had entered into an Exclusive Distribution Agreement 
(“Agreement”) with Xidelang Holdings LTD (“XH LTD”) to 
appoint SPSB as a distributor for the sale and distribution 
of Personal Protective Equipments (“PPE”) products in all 
states of Malaysia.  

The targeted customers for the protective clothing 
products are the public/civilians, the private and public 
enterprises and/or users in the healthcare/manufacturing 
industries. Our ability to supply is dependent on our range 

of products meeting their requirements.

Apart of PPE, Seacera Tiles Marketing Sdn Bhd, one of 
Seacera’s subsidiary had venture into fruits and frozen 
food business trading in September 2020. Seacera 
believes that the food and beverages industry is 
expected to be a resilient business. Although very 
competitive, but due to the current wave of Covid-19 
pandemic, we anticipate consumers preference to stay 
and eat at home rather than eating out. Seacera may 
seek to add additional F&B’s products if having potential 
market acceptance.

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In routing our business towards future sustainable 
practices, Seacera’s aspires to be recognized as a Group 
and continued to build and strengthen our sustainability 
platform across all of our business operations.

The recent outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has 
deeply affected all business and activities around the 
world. With new norms enforced by governments, we all 
have a role to play in caring for ourselves, our families, 
and our communities during this trying period. 

Our corporate responsibility drive focuses on the 
workplace, environment and community.

WORKPLACE

Seacera believes a healthy workplace environment is 
ideal when it comes to maintaining a positive outcome in 
a stressful atmosphere. The Company believe thing that 

on their working environment.

A healthy workplace environment is good for Seacera 
as it would bring sales and improved business. A healthy 
workplace environment improves productivity and 
reduces costs related to absenteeism, turnover, workers’ 
compensation, and medical claims. Additional incentive 
offered to staff will motivates them to assist the company 
in increasing the sales.

Seacera is also committed following the Covid-19 
SOP and in ensuring a safe working environment for 
all employees and others involved in or affected by its 
operation, taking into account legislative requirements 
and any other applicable laws and regulations.

Implementation and effectiveness of these polices 
are the shared responsibility of management and all 
its employees. The participation and involvement of 
Seacera’s Management and its employees cooperation, 
participation and compliance with the organization’s 
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Chairman’s Statement (continue)

policies, procedure and work systems at all levels.

Management of Seacera will regularly review the 
effectiveness of these policies to ensure continuous 
improvement and adequate resources, training and 
instructions shall be provided to its employees. 

The policies will be monitored and reviewed periodically 
or whenever necessary to ensure that it remains relevant 
and appropriate.

ENVIRONMENT

Distribution is an important activity in the integrated 
supply-chain of medical device. Various people and 
entities are generally responsible for the product 
sourcing, procurement, transportation, delivery, 
storage, device tracking, installation, commissioning, 
service and maintenance, calibration, need to be 
appropriately managed and controlled to ensure the 
safety and performance of medical devices at the 
point of use. In some cases, however, a person or entity 
is only involved in and responsible for certain elements 
of the distribution process. The level of risks associated 
with these activities may be of similar degree as those in 
the manufacturing environment and the lack of control 
over these activities may affect safety and performance 
of the devices. The Good Distribution Practice for 
Medical Devices (“GDPMD”) is developed to elucidate 
the requirements for an appropriate management and 
control of these activities.

to ensure appropriate management and control of 
these PPE activities.

COMMUNITY

Seacera offer certain PPE products such as facemask, 
thermometer, and handsanitizer for donation to 
mosques and schools.

More than 100 mosques and schools received our PPE 

A WORD OF THANKS

On behalf of Board of Directors, I wish to thank our 
customers, suppliers and business association for 
their invaluable support in making Seacera’s business 
sustainable until today.

The Board would also like to extend our sincere 
appreciation to the employees for their continuing 
hard work to grow our Group, and their commitment 
and dedication to survive together in this challenging 
phase.

I would like to express my appreciation to my fellow 
Board members for their commitment and dedication 
in ensuring the best practice of the code of ethics. 
Good corporate governance plays an integral and 
crucial role in managing the Group’s business risks and 
opportunities.

The Board also wish to express our gratitude for the 
services rendered by the past directors and staffs of the 

our sincere thank you for your untiring support and 
continued trust in us. We continue to embarking on new 

Thank you and best wishes, 

Yang Berbahagia,
Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar
Chairman of Seacera Group Berhad

14th October 2020
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The Board of Directors and Management of Seacera 
Group Berhad (“Seacera” or “the Company”) are   
pleased to present the Management Discussion & 
Analysis on Group’s business and operation for the 

of three (3) main divisions, trading, properties and 
construction whereas the main activity under the 
trading division is trading of tiles.

TRADING DIVISION

Trading Division registered revenue of RM2.3 million 

year due to no other reason as pandemic Covid-19 
badly affected the economy not only in Malaysia but 
globally. Many of tiles supplied by Seacera are put 
on hold or delayed due to construction site need to 
minimize the workers on site. These main factors have 
led to trading on tiles recorded huge decreased of 

before tax of RM10.4 million compared to a loss 

RM20.8 million and RCPS dividend expense of RM8.4 
million.

Trading of Tiles
 
Currently with Covid-19 situation, Seacera only trades 
the available tiles in Selayang Warehouse. Depending 
on the demand, Seacera will continue to import the 
tiles based on request by customers.

Trading of Building Materials

Similar like tiles, building materials industry also 

Nevertheless, Seacera still continue doing this business 
and continue buy and sell depending on the customers’ 
demand.

Among the building materials products trading by 

products, cements and other general poducts.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION   
AND ANALYSIS
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NEW TRADING BUSINESS

Apart from trading tiles and building materials, Seacera 
has venture into three (3) new business, summarize as 
below:

Trading of Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”)

Presently, due to Covid19, Seacera itself need the PPE 
to protect the staff. As the opportunity come, Seacera 
met the suppliers that offer wide range of PPE items with 
competitive pricing. In May 2020, Seacera consistently 
receive the orders not only from private companies 
but also from the government agencies. Among the 
products currently sell by Seacera are facemask, 
faceshield, handsanitizer, thermometer, gloves, PPE 
suits and other disinfectant items.

Trading of Foods and Beverages (F&B)

Recently, Seacera through its subsidiary, Seacera Tiles 
Marketing Sdn Bhd has started trading F&B products 
namely Premium Fruits and Frozen Food. About 30 
types of fruits and 20 types of frozen food have been 
advertised and received good response from publics. 

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

During Year 2020, the contribution from Construction 

secured have been completed. Among the large 
projects completed which were recorded by the Group:

No. Project Value 
(RM)

Year 
complete

1. Tenera Hotel, Bangi 147 mil 2019
2. Tok Bali Road, Kelantan 49 mil 2019
3. Kompleks Darul Kifayah,

Gombak
21 mil 2015

The Group is always looking at opportunity of securing 
large construction projects and has always in 
enggagement with relevant parties. We are positive that 
our efforts in this area will be fruitful which can eventually

Management Discussion and Analysis (continue)
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

and buildings around Malaysia. Currently, under Seacera 
Properties Sdn Bhd, Seacera owned a piece of land 
approximately 501.5 acres in Semenyih, Selangor (Lot 
613 Land). Based on 2016 valuation, previously taken by 
the Company, the market value of land is approximately 
of RM786.43 million. As for now, the assets still remain as 
previous year and still looking for disposal in raising the 
Group cash.

Seacera have signed JVDA with OCR Group Bhd with 
minimum guaranteed development value of RM10 
billion over the development period of 15 to 25 years.

There are also a potential quarry and sand business on 
Lot 613 which we can extract the potential income via 
lease the land to quarry operators and record income 
base on sold products with minimum monthly guarantee 
income. We estimate between RM200, 000 to RM500,000 
monthly income depending on the rate and size of 
output.

No Description
Market 

Value (RM 
million)

Acquisition 
or Valuation 

Date

Nature of 
Holdings

1. Parcel No.A01-01, 
Ground Floor Hexagon 
Tech Park Georgetown, 
Pulau Pinang. Held 
under Master Title 
Geran No. 62531, Lot 
862, Section 10, Town 
of Georgetown, District 
of North East, State of 
Pulau Pinang.

10.00 21 August 
2008

Freehold

2. No. 32, Jalan SS19/1D, 
SS19, Subang Jaya, 
47500 Subang Jaya, 
Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Held under Individual 
Title GRN 293193, Lot No. 
6240, Bandar of Subang 
Jaya, District of Petaling, 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

4.50 16 June 
2017

Freehold

3. No. 8-2A-B, Jalan OS 1/2, 
One Selayang, 68100 
Batu Caves, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. Held under 
Master Title H.S.(D) 
20573, P.T No. 27148, 
Mukim of Batu, District 
of Gombak and State of 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

0.25 19 April 
2010

Leasehold

4. No. 6-3B, Jalan OS 1/2, 
One Selayang, 68100 
Batu Caves, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. Held under 
Master Title H.S.(D) 
20573, P.T No. 27148, 
Mukim of Batu, District 
of Gombak and State of 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

0.25 6 May 
2010

Leasehold

No Description
Market 

Value (RM 
million)

Acquisition 
or Valuation 

Date

Nature of 
Holdings

5. No. 17-2A-B, Jalan OS 
1/2, One Selayang, 
68100 Batu Caves, 
Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Held under Master Title 
H.S.(D) 20573, P.T No. 
27148, Mukim of Batu, 
District of Gombak and 
State of Selangor Darul 
Ehsan.

0.25 6 May 
2010

Leasehold

6. No. 35-3B, Jalan OS 1/1, 
One Selayang, 68100 
Batu Caves Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. Held under 
Master Title H.S. (D) 
20573, P.T No. 27148, 
Mukim Batu, District of 
Gombak and State of 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

0.25 5 July 2010 Leasehold

7. No. 11A-2AB, Jalan OS 
1/1, One Selayang, 
68100 Batu Caves 
Selangor Darul Ehsan. 
Master Title H.S. (D) 
20573, P.T No. 27148, 
Mukim Batu, District of 
Gombak and State of 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

0.25 26 June 
2010

Leasehold

8. No. 9-2A-B, Jalan OS 1/3, 
One Selayang, 68100 
Batu Caves Selangor 
Darul Ehsan. Held under 
Master Title H.S. (D) 
20573, P.T No. 27148, 
Mukim Batu, District of 
Gombak and State of 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

0.25 20 
October 

2010

Leasehold

9. PM249, M1-B Tingkat 4, 
Petak 105, Lot 52019, 
Mukim Batu, District of 
Gombak and State of 
Selangor Darul Ehsan.

0.26 17 
October 

201

Leasehold

10. PT 23041, PT23042 & 
PT24244 Mukim Asam 
Kumbang, District of 
Larut & Matang, State of 
Perak Darul Ridzuan.

22.02 10 June 
2015

Leasehold

11. Lot 613, Geran 23940, 
Mukim Ulu Semenyih, 
District of Ulu Langat, 
State of Selangor Darul 
Ehsan.

786.00 28 
September 

2020

Freehold

12. Lot No. 1749, Mukim Of 
Tangga Batu, District Of 
Melaka Tengah, State 
Of Melaka.

16.90 20 March 
2017

Leasehold

Total 841.18

The challenging impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
will stretch expectedly until end of next year and the 
business recovery remains uncertain. 

Due to uncertain market condition ahead, the Group 
will continue to take necessary measures and continue 
to explore ways to improve the Group’s performance.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continue)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Management Discussion and Analysis (continue)
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Seacera Group Berhad (“Seacera” or “Company”) is dedicated to taking the concerns of our stakeholders seriously 
and thus, we are committed to take into consideration the path of sustainable growth. The economic, environmental 
and social (“EES”) impacts are essential considerations of Seacera and instrumental in affecting ethical work practices. 

materials and personal protective equipment. 

Sustainability Working Group

As part of our commitment towards sustainability, we established a Sustainability Working Group comprise of Heads 

The meeting will be conducted at least once a month to monitor and review the sustainability matters.

Working towards Sustainability

Various initiatives and efforts were implemented during FYE 2020 recorded as below:

EES Factors Stakeholders Concerns Initiatives and efforts taken

1.   Economic a)  Customers (i)   Product Responsibility -   Our commitment to product safety 
and quality 

-   Product sampling
(ii)  Customer Satisfaction -   Customer surveys 

-   Promotion campaigns
(iii) Helping small 

entrepreneur
-   Special price for agents 
-   Periodic Offering

b)  Suppliers (i)   Pricing -   Pricing review
-   Approaching new suppliers for best 

price
c)  Shareholders 

and Investors
(i)   Regulatory Compliance 

and Financial Stability
-   Media Release
-   Bursa Announcement
-   Annual Report
-   Annual General Meeting

d)  Government 
and 
Regulatory 
authorities

(i)   Compliance with 
relevant rules and 
regulations

-   Engaged professional bodies such 
as company secretaries, internal 
and external auditor, lawyers and 
advisers.

-   Complied with various licences
2.   Environmental a) Environment (i)   Protecting the    

      environment
-   Reduce consumption of resources 

and waste
-   Paper usage reduction
-   Implement energy saving by using 

LED light
-   Adopt waste management 

procedure
3.   Social a) Employees (i)  Workplace -   High performance culture

-   Respect and value diversity
-   Development through training
-   Safety place

b) Community (i)   Social and Welfare
      Contributions

-   Products and monetary contributions 
to the less fortunate

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT



Seacera Group Berhad • Annual Report 2020

15

Sustainability Statement (continue)
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The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Seacera Group 
Berhad (“Company”) is committed to ensure that the 
adequate standards of Corporate Governance are 
practiced throughout the Company and its subsidiaries 
(collectively the “Group”) towards enhancing business 
prosperity and corporate accountability to realize long 
term shareholders’ value. The Board is working towards 
ensuring full compliance with principles and best practices 
of Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance that was 
implemented on 26 April 2017 (“MCCG”).

The Board is pleased to report to shareholders on the 
manner the Group has applied the three (3) main 
principles known as Board Leadership and Effectiveness 
(Principle A), Effective Audit and Risk Management 
(Principle B) and Integrity in Corporate Reporting and 
Meaningful Relationship with Stakeholders (Principle C) 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement should be 
read together with Corporate Governance Report 2020 
which is available on the Company’s website at www.
seacera.com.my.

Principle A: Board Leadership and Effectiveness

I  Board Responsibilities 

1.0 Every company is headed by a Board, which assumes 
responsibility for the Company’s leadership and is 
collectively responsible for meeting the objectives 
and goals of the Company.

 The Board assumes full responsibilities for the overall 
performance of the Group by setting the policies, 
establishing goals and monitoring the achievement of 
the goals through strategic action plans and careful 
stewardship of the Group’s assets and resources. It 

issues, like principal risks and their management, 
succession planning for senior management, 
investor relations programme and shareholders 
communication policy, systems for internal control 
and compliance with laws and regulations.

 In discharging their responsibility, the Board considers 
all aspects of the operations of the Group and in 
particular the following areas:

 
•  Reviewing and adopting a strategic business plan 

for the Group.
• Overseeing the conduct of the business of the 

Group.
•  Identifying and putting in place systems to manage 

any principal risk.
•  Succession planning for senior management.

•  Developing and implementing investor relations 
programme or shareholder communications 
policy.

• Reviewing internal control and management 
information systems.

To ensure the effective discharge of its function and 

responsibilities to the following Committees:-

(a)  Audit & Risk Management Committee (“ARC”)
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

(“NRC”)

The Board currently consists of four (4) Directors as at 
the date of this report:-

*  DATO’ DR AZIRUL SALIHIN BIN ANUAR 
 Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

**  NICHOLAS WONG YEW KHID
 Independent Non-Executive Director

*  MAH SOON CHAI
 Independent Non-Executive Director
 
*  CHUA YEONG LIN
 Independent Non-Executive Director

* Appointed on 16 January 2020
** Appointed on 29 November 2019

 
The Directors are credible professionals of calibre, 
who play key supporting roles by contributing their 
knowledge, guidance and experience towards 
making independent judgment on issues of strategies, 
performance, resources and standards of conduct. 
The Directors ensure that the strategies proposed by 
the Management are fully discussed and examined 
and the long-term interests of the shareholders, 
employees, suppliers and customers are taken into 
account.

company secretaries who facilitate overall 
compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) 
(“MMLR”) and other relevant laws and regulations.

The company secretaries of the Company are 

Section 235 of the Companies Act 2016.The company 
secretaries play important roles in ensuring adherence 
to the Board policies and procedures from time to 
time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
OVERVIEW STATEMENT
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The company secretaries carry out the following tasks:

•  Attend and ensure proper conduct and procedures 
at all Board Meetings, Board Committee 
Meetings, Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and 
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”);

•  Ensure that deliberations at the meetings are 
well captured and minuted, and subsequently 
communicated to the relevant Management 
personnel for necessary actions;

•  Ensure that the Company complies with the MMLR 
and the requirements of the relevant authorities;

•  Inform and keep the Board updated of the latest 
enhancement in corporate governance, changes 
in the legal and regulatory framework, new 
statutory requirements and best practices;

of the closed period for trading in the Company’s 
securities; and

•  Ensure proper record and maintenance of the 
Company’s proceedings, resolutions, statutory 
records, register books and documents.

The Board convenes on scheduled meetings quarterly 
to deliberate and approve the Group’s quarterly 
results. Additional meetings will be convened as and 
when needed. The agenda and Board papers for 
each item as well as minutes of previous meetings 
are circulated prior to the Board meetings to give the 

be raised at the Board meetings.

In addition, there is a schedule of matters reserved 

amongst others, the approval of corporate policies 
and procedures, Group operational plan and 
budget, acquisitions and disposals of undertakings 
and properties that are material to the Group, 
major investments, changes to management and 
control structure of the Group, including key policies, 
procedures and authority limits.

In carrying out their duties, the Directors have 
complete access to all staff for information pertaining 
to the Group’s affairs. The Directors also have full 
access to advice and services of the company 
secretary. Where necessary, the Directors engage 
independent professional for advice at the Group’s 
expense to enable them to discharge their duties with 
full knowledge of the cause and effect.

The Board also ensures that the minutes of meetings 

the Board, including whether any Director abstained 
from voting or deliberating on a particular matter. 
Upon conclusion of the meeting, the Board also 
ensures the minutes are circulated in a timely manner. 
External auditors and internal auditors are invited to 

attend meetings to provide insights and professional 
views, advice and explanation on matter specify 
in the meeting agenda. When necessary, senior 
management team from different department are 
also invited to participate at the Board meeting to 
enable all Board members to have equal access to 
the latest updates and development of the business 
operation presented by the senior management 
team.

2.0 There is demarcation of responsibilities between the 
Board, Board Committees and Management. There 
is clarity in the authority of the Board, its Committees 
and individual Directors.

 
 The Board concurred that the Board Charter 

(“Charter”) should be reviewed and updated in 
accordance with the needs of the Company and 
upon any new regulation to be implemented.

 The Board has established clear functions reserved 
for the Board and those delegated to Management 
in the Charter which serves as a reference point for 
Board’s activities. The Charter provides guidance for 
Directors and Management on the responsibilities 
of the Board, its Committees and requirements of 
Directors and it is subject to periodical review to 
ensure consistency with the Board’s strategic intent as 
well as relevant standards of corporate governance. 
Salient terms of the Charter are made available at 
the Company’s website at www.seacera.com.my.

3.0 The Board is committed to promoting good business 
conduct and maintaining a healthy corporate 
culture that engenders integrity, transparency and 
fairness. The Board, Management, Employees and 
other Stakeholders are clear on what is considered 
acceptable behavior and practice in the Company.

 The Company has also formalized a set of ethical 
standards through a Code of Conduct and Ethics, 
which is subject to periodical review, to ensure 
Directors practice ethical, business like and lawful 
conduct, including proper use of authority and 
appropriate decorum when acting as Board 
members. The Board has reviewed the Code of 
Conduct and Ethics on 22 November 2019. The Code 
of Conduct and Ethics is published on the Company’s 
website at www.seacera.com.my.

 Along with good governance practices and in order 
to enhance transparency and accountability, the 
Board has established and put in place the following 
policies and procedures, full details of which are 
made available at the Company’s website at www.
seacera.com.my.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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-  Board Charter and Code of Conduct & Ethics
-  Investor Relation Policy
- Remuneration Policy
-  Gift Policy
-  Board Gender Diversity Policy
-  Employees’ Share Option Scheme (ESOS) Charter
-  Nominating & Remuneration Committee Terms of 

Reference
-  Audit & Risk Management Committee Terms of 

Reference
-  Whistle Blowing Policy

II  Board Composition

4.0 Board decisions are made objectively in the best 
interests of the Company taking into account diverse 
perspectives and insights.

 The Company has complied with the requirement of 
paragraph 15.02 of the MMLR which requires majority 
of the Board of Directors are made up of Independent 
Non-Executive Directors. The Board currently consists 
of four (4) Directors, all of whom are Independent 
Non-Executive Director.

 The Group is led and managed by an experienced 
Board, all of whom have vast knowledge of the 
business. The Management of the Group’s business 
and implementation of policies and day-to-day 
running of the business is delegated to the Group 

Non Executive Directors provide unbiased and 
independent views to safeguard the interests of 
shareholders.

 The Board collectively views that its current size 
complies with the MMLR and is effective. The Board 
will also review, from time to time, the need to revise 
its size and composition of the Board and determine 
the impact and the effectiveness of any proposed 
change of its current size.

 The Board has considered and found that the current 
size of the Board is adequate and facilitates effective 
decision-making

 The NRC has reviewed the present composition of the 
Board and the two (2) main existing board committees 

their functions within their scope of work.

 The Company does not have a policy on the tenure 
of Independent Director, however, the Company 
recognizes MCCG’s recommendation that the 
tenure of an independent director should not exceed 
a cumulative term of nine (9) years. Upon completion 
of nine (9) years, the Independent Director may 

continue to serve on the Board as an Independent 
Director subject to assessment by the Board and 
shareholders’ approval at the general meeting. If the 
Board continues to retain the Independent Director 
after the twelfth year, the Board may consider seeking 
shareholders’ approval through a two-tier voting 
process.

 The Board recognizes the importance of 
independence and objectivity in the decision making 
process. The Board is committed to ensure that the 
Independent Directors are capable to exercise 
independent judgment and act in the best interests 
of the Group.

the criteria of “Independence” as prescribed by 
MMLR. They act independently of management and 
are not involved in any other relationship with the 
Group that may impair their independent judgment 
and decision making.

Each Director has a continuing responsibility to 

of interest in relation to any material transactions. 
Such a situation may arise from external associations, 
interests or personal relationships. The Director is 
required to immediately disclose to the Board and to 
abstain from participating in discussions, deliberations 
and decisions of the Board on the respective matters.

The Board, via NRC has developed the criteria 
to assess independence and formalized the 
current independence assessment practice. 
Each Independent Director has provided his own 
declaration of Director’s Independence to the Board.

The Board appoints its members through a formal 
and transparent selection process, which is consistent 
with the Memorandum and Articles of Association 
(“M&A”)of the Company. This process has been 
reviewed, approved and adopted by the Board. 
New appointees will be considered and evaluated 
by the NRC. The NRC will then recommend the 
candidates to the Board for appointment as director 
of the Company. The company secretary will ensure 
all appointments are properly made and that legal 
and regulatory requirements are met.

The M&A of the Company requires that all Directors 
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the 

least one third (1/3) or the number nearest to one 
third (1/3) of the Directors, be subject to re-election 
by rotation.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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every three (3) years at the AGM. Newly appointed 

general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election. 
The re-election of each director is voted separately. 

attendance and their shareholdings in the Group of 
each Director standing for re-election are furnished in 
the Annual Report.

The NRC is also responsible for recommending to the 
Board those Directors who are eligible to stand for re-
election based on the reviews of their performance 
and their contribution to the Board through their skills, 
experience, qualities and ability to act in the best 
interests of the Company in decision making.

There were changes to the composition of the Board 

Salihin bin Anuar, Mah Soon Chai and Chua Yeong 
Lin were appointed as additional Directors of the 
Company with effect from 16 January 2020.

All directors of the Company do not hold more than 

complied with paragraph 15.06 of MMLR.

The Board held ten (10) Board Meetings during the 

individual Director are as follows:-

Name Meetings 
attended

(1) Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar 1 2/2
(1) Mah Soon Chai 2/2
(1) Chua Yeong Lin 2/2
(2) Nicholas Wong Yew Khid 4/4
(3) Dato’ Nik Ismail Bin Dato’ Nik Yusoff 6/6
(3) Mazlan Bin Mohamad 6/6
(3) Dato’ Mejar Ismail Bin Ahmad 6/6
(3) Datuk Seri Mansor Bin Masikon 5/6
(3) Ishak Bin Ismail 4/6
(3) Koo Kien Yoon 6/6
(3) Wan Mohd Zahari Bin Wan Embong 5/6
(3) Zamri Bin Mohd Ramli  5/6
(3) Saharom Bin Mohd Adas 5/6
(4) Dr Zulqarnain Bin Lukman 4/6

Name Meetings 
attended

(6) Dato’ Seri Abdul Azim Bin Mohd. 
Zabidi

1/2

(7) Ling Chi Hoong 1/1
(8) Halim @ Ab Halim Bin Ismail 0/1
(8) Rozaidi Bin Baharudin 1/1
(9) Yong Ket Inn 1/2
(9) Chong Loong Men 1/1
(9) Chu Chee Peng 2/2
(9) Shi’aratul Akmar Binti Sahari 1/1
(10) YM Tengku Ahmad Badli Shah Bin 

Raja Hussin
2/2

(10) Mohd Adzhar Bin Abd Hamed 1/2

(1) Appointed on 16 January 2020
(2) Appointed on 29 November 2019
(3) Retired on 29 November 2019
(4) Resigned on 4 November 2019
(6) Resigned on 4 December 2019
(7) Resigned on 23 December 2019
(8) Resigned on 26 December 2019
(9) Resigned on 27 December 2019
(10) Resigned on 26 February 2020

The Board members are encouraged to attend training 
programmes to update their knowledge on various 
issues facing the changing business environment. These 
will enhance their professionalism and knowledge to 
effectively discharge their roles and responsibilities and 
sustain participation in the Board deliberations. All the 
Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (“MAP”) as required by Bursa Securities.

following training programmes and seminars were 
attended by the following Directors:

Director
Name of conferences 
/ seminars and training 
programmes attended

Datuk Seri Mansor 
Bin Masikon

The Convergence of 
Digitisation and Sustainability

Dato’ Nik Ismail Bin 
Dato’ Nik Yusoff

- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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Director
Name of conferences 
/ seminars and training 
programmes attended

Mazlan Bin 
Mohamad

- Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (MAP) by ICLIF
- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Mejar Dato’ Ismail 
Bin Ahmad

- The Convergence of 
Digitisation and Sustainability
- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Dato’ Seri Abdul 
Azim Bin Mohd. 
Zabidi  

N/A

Ishak Bin Ismail - Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (MAP) by ICLIF
- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Dr Zulqarnain Bin 
Lukman

- Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (MAP) by ICLIF
- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Koo Kien Yoon -Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Wan Mohd Zahari 
Bin Wan Embong

- Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (MAP) by ICLIF
- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Zamri Bin Mohd 
Ramli

- Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (MAP) by ICLIF
- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Saharom Bin Mohd 
Adas

- Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (MAP) by ICLIF
- Section 17A of MACC 
Act 2016, Corporate 
Governance, Risk 
Management & Sustainability

Director
Name of conferences 
/ seminars and training 
programmes attended

Halim @ Ab Halim 
Bin Ismail

N/A

Ling Chi Hoong N/A
Rozaidi Bin 
Baharudin

N/A

Yong Ket Inn N/A
Chong Loong Men N/A
Chu Chee Peng N/A
Shi’aratul Akmar Binti 
Sahari

N/A

YM Tengku Ahmad 
Badli Shah Bin Raja 
Hussin

N/A

Mohd Adzhar Bin 
Abd Hamed

N/A

Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin 
Bin Anuar

N/A

Mah Soon Chai - Mandatory Accreditation 
Programme (MAP) by Asia 
School of Business (ICLIF 
Executive Education Center)

Chua Yeong Lin N/A
Nicholas Wong Yew 
Khid

N/A

5.0  Stakeholders are able to form an opinion on the 
overall effectiveness of the board and individual 
directors

 The NRC consists of four (4) members, all of whom are 
Independent Non Executive Directors.

 The functions of the NRC are as follows:
 

•  Recommend to the Board the candidates for all 

Board.

seats on Committees of Directors.
•  Review the required mix of skills and experience 

and other qualities including core competencies 
which Non-Executives should bring to the Board.

•  Assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, 
the Committees of Directors and the contribution 
of each Director.

ARC members and performance of the Audit 
Committee and each of its members.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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 The Board has established a nomination process of 
board members to facilitate and provide a guide for 
the NRC to identify, evaluate, select and recommend 
to the Board the candidate to be appointed as a 
director of the Company.

 The nomination and election process of board 
members can be found in the Board Charter at the 
Company’s website at www.seacera.com.my.

 The Company conducts an annual assessment to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the Board and the 
Board committee as well as the performance of 
each individual director through the NRC. The NRC 
will evaluate the overall performance rating and 
implement improvement plan on less performance 
area.

 The summary of the activities of the NRC during the 

•  Reviewed the mix of skill and experience and 
other qualities of the Board and recommended 
to the Board for approval.

•  Assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a 
whole, the Board committees and the Directors.

•  Discussed the Company’s Directors’ retirement 
by rotation.

members.

present composition of the Board and was of the view 
that the Board composition was made up of a balance 
mixture of skills and professionalism, no additional 
board member is required for the time being. 

All Directors have completed the Director’s Self-
Assessment Form and the Performance Evaluation 
Sheet (PES) for the assessment of the Board and Board 
Committees.

In summary, the NRC noted that performance of the 
Board of Directors, Board Committees and individual 
Directors was adequate.

attendance of each member as follows:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Name Meetings 
attended

Dato’ Mejar Ismail bin Ahmad
(Previous Chairman)

1/1

Name Meetings 
attended

Dato’ Nik Ismail bin Dato’ Nik Yusoff 
(Previous member)

1/1

Datuk Seri Mansor Bin Masikon 
(Previous member)

N/A

Dr Zulqarnain bin Lukman 
(Previous member)

N/A

Ishak Bin Ismail 
(Previous member)

1/1

* Nicholas Wong Yew Khid 
  (Current Chairman)

N/A

* Chua Yeong Lin (Current member) N/A
* Mah Soon Chai (Current member) N/A
* Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar 

(Current member)
N/A

     
* Appointed as Chairman and members of NRC on 30 

April 2020

Based on the current position and practices of 
the Company, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee upon its review on the composition of 

composition, mix of skills and qualities of the Directors 
were appropriate and conformed to the best practices 
in the MCCG.

III Remuneration

6.0  The level and composition of remuneration of directors 
and senior management take into account the 
company’s desire to attract and retain the right talent 
in the board and senior management to drive the 
company’s long-term objectives. The remuneration 
policies and decisions are made through a transparent 
and independent process.

 The Board recognized that the NRC should only 
consist of Non Executive Directors where a majority of 
them must be Independent Directors. The Company 

Independent non-executive directors.

 The NRC is responsible to review and recommend the 
remuneration of Directors to the Board. The Board, 
as a whole, determines the remuneration of the 
Directors and the individual Director would abstain 
from discussing on his own remuneration.
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 The Non-Executive Directors are remunerated based 
on their experiences and the level of responsibilities 
undertaken by the respective Non-Executive Directors 
concerned.

 
 The NRC will make its recommendations to the 

Board regarding the Company’s policy on the staff 
remuneration by taking into consideration the salary 
and employment conditions within the industry and 
benchmarks from comparable companies.

 The NRC strives to be competitive, linking staff rewards 
with their performance and responsibilities.

 The NRC aims to directly align the interests of Directors, 
Senior Management and key Executives with the 
interests of shareholders, to improve performance 
and achieve sustainable growth for the Company 
in the changing business environment, and to foster 
a greater ownership culture amongst its Senior 
Management and key Executives.

7.0 Stakeholders are able to assess whether the 
remuneration of directors and senior management 
is commensurate with their individual performance, 
taking into consideration the company’s performance.

The remuneration paid or payable to all Directors of 

2020 is as follows:-

Company
Salaries Fees Bonus Allowance EPF Socso Other Total

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
Executive
Mazlan Bin Mohamad 15,000 5,000 20,000
Sub Total 15,000 5,000 20,000
Non Executive
Dato’ Nik Ismail Bin Nik Yusoff 25,000 5,000 30,000
Datuk Seri Mansor Bin Masikon 24,484 4,000 28,484
Dato’ Mejar Ismail Bin Ahmad 15,000 5,000 20,000
Ishak Bin Ismail 15,000 5,000 20,000
Dr Zulqarnain Bin Lukman 6,000 1,000 7,000
Koo Kien Yoon 15,000 5,000 20,000
Wan Mohd Zahari 
Bin Wan Embong

15,000 5,000 20,000

Zamri Bin Mohd Ramli 15,000 5,000 20,000
Saharom Bin Mohd Adas 15,000 5,000 20,000
Dato’ Seri Abdul Azim 
Bin Mohd. Zabidi  

1,000 1,000

Haji Halim @ AB Halim Bin Ismail 7,320 7,320
Ling Chi Hoong 1,000 1,000
Rozaidi Bin Baharudin 1,000 1,000
Yong Ket Inn 1,000 1,000
Chong Loong Men -
Chu Chee Peng 2,000 2,000
Shi’aratul Akmar Binti Sahari 1,000 1,000
YM Tengku Ahmad Badli Shah 
Bin Raja Hussin

2,000 2.000

Mohd Adzhar Bin Abd Hamed 1,000 1,000
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Company
Salaries Fees Bonus Allowance EPF Socso Other Total

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
Non Executive
Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar 5,000 5,000
Mah Soon Chai 3,000 3,000
Chua Yeong Lin 3,000 3,000
Nicholas Wong Yew Khid 3,000 2,000 5,000

Sub-total 166,804 52,000 218,804

Total 181,804 57,000 238,804

year ended 30 June 2020 are as follows:-

Key Senior Management Company Group
From RM10,000 to RM50,000 1 0
From RM51,000 to RM100,000 2 0
From RM101,000 to RM150,000 0 0
From RM151,000 to RM200,000 0 0
From RM201,000 to RM250,000 1 0

The remuneration of the key Senior Management of the Company as disclosed above is on an aggregate basis. At this 
particular juncture, the Board is of the opinion that the disclosure of the Senior Management’s various remuneration 

PRINCIPLE B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

I  Audit & Risk Management Committee (“ARC”)

8.0 There is an effective and independent ARC. The 

statement is a reliable source of information.

 The ARC principle duties include the supervision of the 

statements, the effectiveness and adequacy 
of the Company’s internal control as well as risk 
management system.

 The ARC comprises exclusively Independent Non-
Executive Directors and to ensure the Board is able 

independently, the chairman of ARC is not the 
chairman of the Board. 

 

 The Board aims to provide and present a balanced 

performance and prospects at the end of the 

results. The Board is assisted by the ARC to oversee the 

statements of the Group give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company 

Directors have ensured that Applicable Approved 
Accounting Standards in Malaysia and the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2016 and the MMLR have 
been applied.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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required to:-

•  Adopt suitable accounting policies consistently;
•  Make judgments and estimates that are prudent 

and reasonable;
•  Comply with applicable accounting standards;

basis unless otherwise stated; and
•  Ensure proper keeping of accounting records 

with reasonable accuracy.

present a balanced and comprehensive assessment 
of the Company’s position and prospects in the 
Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements of this 
Annual Report.

 An internal compliance framework exists to ensure 
that the Group meets its obligations relating to related 
party transactions under the MMLR. The Board through 
its ARC, reviews and reports to the Board any related 
party transactions (including recurrent related party 

may arise within the Company or Group. A Director 
who has an interest in a transaction must abstain from 
deliberation and voting on the relevant resolution in 
respect of such transaction at the Board and any 
general meeting convened to consider such matters. 

 The Group practices the cooling off period to 
safeguard the independence of the audit by 
avoiding potential threat which may arise when 
a former key audit partner is in a position to exert 

 The ARC assessed the suitability and independence 
of the external auditors. In its assessment, the ARC 
considered several factors, which included adequacy 
of experience and knowledge of the relevant 
accounting standards, ability to meet deadlines, 
quality and quantity of human resources used to 
perform the assigned audit, clarity of presentations 
and quality of reports produced and independence 
of Messrs. Al Jafree Salihin Kuzaimi PLT (“Salihin”).

independent in accordance with the By-laws (on 
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the 
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, throughout their 
engagement.

competency and independence of the external 
auditors. Thus, the ARC recommended the 
appointment of the external auditors and the Board 
at its meeting held on the same day approved 
the ARC’s recommendation for the shareholders’ 

approval to be sought at the forthcoming Thirty-Fifth 
AGM.

II  Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

9.0  Company makes informed decisions about the level 
of risk they want to take and implement necessary 
controls to pursue their objectives. The board is 
provided with reasonable assurance that adverse 
impact arising from a foreseeable future event or 
situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated 
and managed.

 The Board has ultimate responsibility for reviewing the 
Company’s risks, approving the risk management 
framework and policy and overseeing the 
Company’s strategic risk management and internal 
control framework to achieve its objectives within an 

interest of stakeholders and shareholders and the 
Group’s assets.

 The key features of the risk management framework 
are presented in the Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control of the Company as set out on 
page 30 to 31 of this Annual Report.

10.0 The Company has an effective governance, risk 
management and internal control framework and 
stakeholders are able to assess the effectiveness of 
such a framework.

 
 The Group has outsourced its internal audit function 

Associates PLT. The internal audit function covers 

and risk management functions. 
 
 The internal audit personnel are free from any 

impair their objectivity and independence. Mr. Josh 
Chuah (director of Messrs. Mac & Associates PLT.) 
is the person who is responsible for internal audit 

auditor. The internal audit function is carried out in 
accordance with a recognised framework.

 The Statement on Risk Management and Internal 
Control furnished on page 30 to 31 of the Annual 
Report provides an overview on the state of internal 
controls within the Group, in its effort to manage 
risk. The Board is aware of the need to establish 
corporate disclosure policies and procedures 
to enable comprehensive, accurate and timely 
disclosures of material information relating to the 
Company and its subsidiaries to be made to the 
regulators, shareholders and stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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 On this basis, the Board has formalized pertinent 
policies and procedures not only to comply with 
the disclosure requirements as stipulated in the 
MMLR, but also setting out the persons authorized 
and responsible to approve and disclose material 
information to regulators, shareholders and 
stakeholders.

 The release of material information will be made 
publicly via Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 
Members of the public can also obtain the full 

from the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s website.

 The Company’s website at www.seacera.com.my is 
regularly updated and provides relevant information 
on the Company which is accessible to the public to 
make informed investment decision.

PRINCIPLE C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND 
MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

I Communication with Stakeholders

11.0  There is continuous communication between the 
company and stakeholders to facilitate mutual 
understanding of each other’s objectives and 
expectations. Stakeholders are able to make 
informed decisions with respect to the business 
of the company, its policies on governance, the 
environment and social responsibility.

 The Board believes the dialogue with stakeholders 

the company to understand stakeholders’ concerns 
and to take these concerns into account when 
making decisions.

 The Company has established an investor relation 
website to keep our shareholders and investors 
updated on latest development of the Company. 
It includes announcements released to Bursa 

annual reports.

 Communication between the Company and its 
shareholders are done in the following manner:

a. Dialogue between Companies and Investors

 The annual report, quarterly reports and various 
mandatory announcements are the main 
channel of information by the Company of its 

developments.

 

 The Company’s website at www.seacera.com.
my contains vital information concerning the 
Group which is updated on a regular basis and 
shareholders are able to put questions to the 
Company through the website.

 The Board considers it essential that investors 

and developments of the Company and where 
appropriate, will provide disclosure that is in the 
best interest of the Company and also of the 
shareholders. All such reporting information can 
be obtained from the websites of the Company 
and Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

b. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)

 The AGM is an important event for the Company 
as the Board has the opportunity to have a 
dialogue with the shareholders to present the 
results and performance of the Group and to 
address all questions that may arise. Suggestions 
and comments by shareholders will be noted by 
the Board for consideration.

c. Investor Relation Policy

 The Company maintained an open and 
transparent channel of communication with its 
shareholders and public at large. Any inquiry of 
the Company’s performance may be conveyed 
to:

Telephone number : 03-6136 2494                              
Facsimile number : 03-6136 9308                              
Email address : zulkarnin@seacera.com.my        

II Conduct of General Meetings

12.0  Shareholders are able to participate, engage the 
board and senior management effectively and 
make Informed voting decisions at general meetings

 The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue and 
interaction with shareholders. The key element of 
the Company’s dialogue with its shareholders is 
the opportunity to gather views of, and answer 
questions from, both the individual and institutional 
investors on all aspects relevant to the Company at 
the AGM. It is also a requirement for the Company 
to send the Notice of the AGM and related circular 
to its shareholders at least twenty eight (28) days 
before the meeting. At the AGM, shareholders 
are encouraged to ask questions both about the 
resolutions being proposed or about the Group’s 
operations in general to seek more information.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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 All resolutions set out in the notice of general 
meetings will be carried out by poll voting. The Board 
will make announcement of the detailed results 
showing the number of votes cast for and against 
each resolution at general meetings to facilitate 
greater shareholder participation.

 COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

 The Board has deliberated, reviewed and approved 
this Statement, and considers that this overview 
statement provides the information necessary to 
enable

 shareholders to evaluate how the MCCG has been 

MMLR and all applicable laws and regulations 

 This Statement was approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Company on 30 October 2020.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement (continue)
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COMPOSITION OF MEMBERS

The Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARC”) 
of Seacera Group Berhad (“SGB” or “the Company”), 
chaired by an Independent Director, comprises four 
members, all of whom are Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors. The current composition 
meets the requirement of Paragraphs 15.09 and 15.10 
of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“Listing 
Requirements”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”). The ARC currently comprises 
the following Independent Non-Executive Directors, 
namely:-

Member of the Audit & Risk Management 
Committee Designation

*Chua Yeong Lin
Independent Non-Executive Director Chairman

**Nicholas Wong Yew Khid
Independent Non-Executive Director Member

**Mah Soon Chai
Independent Non-Executive Director Member

**Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar
Independent Non-Executive Director Member

*     Appointed as Chairman on 30 April 2020
**    Appointed as member on 30 April 2020

each of its members shall be reviewed by the Board of 
Directors (“Board”) no less than once every three (3) 

discharged their functions, duties and responsibilities in 
accordance with the ARC’s Terms of Reference which is 
available on the Company’s corporate website.

ended 30 June 2020. The internal auditor had, by 
invitation, attended the meetings. Other Management 
members and external auditor had also been invited to 
attend as and when required by the ARC. 

The details of the attendance of each member at the 

June 2020 are as follows:

Member of the Audit & Risk Management 
Committee

Number of 
Committee
Meetings 
Attended

*Chua Yeong Lin (Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Director 1/1

*Nicholas Wong Yew Khid (Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director 1/1

*Mah Soon Chai (Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director 1/1

*Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar 
(Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director 1/1

**Yong Ket Inn (Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Director NA

**Shi’aratulAkmar Binti Sahari (Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director NA

*** Mohd Adzhar Bin Abd Hamed 
(Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director NA

**** Wan Mohd Zahari Bin Wan Embong 
(Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Director 3/3

**** Mejar Dato’ Ismail Bin Ahmad 
(Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director 3/3

**** Koo Kien Yoon (Member)
Independent Non-Executive Director 3/3

* Appointed on 30 April 2020
** Resigned on 27 December 2019
*** Resigned on 26 February 2020
**** Retired on 29 November 2019

INDEPENDENCE OF THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE

The Company recognises the need to uphold 
independence of its external auditors and that no 

Currently, none of the members of the Board nor the 
ARC of the Company were former key audit partners 
of the external auditors appointed by the Group. The 
Company will observe a cooling-off period of at least 
two (2) periods in the event any potential candidate 
to be appointed as a member of ARC was a key audit 
partner of the external auditors of the Group.

AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE REPORT
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TERMS OF REFERENCE

its oversight responsibilities and to ensure that the 
Management has properly addressed required controls 
and guidance by the Board. The ARC shall review and 
ensure that the process of assessing the risk, control 

controls, business ethics and compliance, are properly 
managed and monitored.

The Terms of Reference of ARC is available on the 
Company’s website at www.seacera.com.my.

Authority

The Board has empowered the ARC to:

1. Investigate any activity within the scope of the ARC’s 
duties and its terms of reference and shall have 
full and unrestricted access to any information or 
documents relevant to the ARC’s activities;

2. Obtain independent legal or other professional 
advice as necessary;

3. Communicate directly with the external auditors, 
internal auditors and all employees of the Group. 

and competencies of external auditors and internal 
auditors;

4. Have adequate resources to perform its duties 
as set out in its terms of references; and make 
recommendations for improvements of operating 
performance and Management control arising from 
internal and external audit recommendations.

Responsibilities and Duties

The functions of the ARC have been expanded to include 

Governance (“MCCG”) as follows:

1. Risk Management and Internal Control

 Ensure that risk management is in place with an 
adequate awareness and understanding of risk by 
the Management and proper internal control in 
place to safeguard shareholders’ interests and the 
Company’s assets. 

2. Financial Reporting

 

disclosures, changes in accounting policies and 
practices in compliance with Malaysian Financial 

Reporting Standards (MFRS), International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia as well as the Listing 
Requirements.

3. Internal Auditors (“IA”)

 The Group has outsourced its internal audit division to 

MAC & Associates PLT to assist the ARC in discharging 
their responsibilities and duties. The above-

In respect of the internal audit function, the Board 
has empowered the ARC:

1. To review the adequacy of the scope, functions, 
competency and resources of the IA and to 
assess whether it has the necessary authority 
to carry out its responsibilities with regards to 
the annual audit plan in accordance to the 
Institute of Internal Auditors’ best practices and 
frameworks;

2. To review internal audit program and results of 
the internal audit process and where necessary 
ensure that appropriate action is taken on the 
recommendations of the IA;

3. To review any appraisal or assessment of 
the performance of the IA as well as make 
recommendation for the appointment or 
termination of IA to the Board; and

4. Allowing ARC to discuss directly with IA as and 
when is required by ARC.

report issued to the management. The IA only 
conducts several trainings on Risk Management 
matters which have been mentioned in the 
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control 
(SORMIC) at page 31 in this Annual Report.

 The total costs incurred by the IA in discharging 
its functions and responsibilities in respect of the 

RM14,500 as compared to RM40,874.46 in 2019.

4. External Auditors (“EA”)

 With regards to EA, the Board has empowered the 
ARC:

1. To review and monitor the suitability and 
independence of the EA. The ARC’s judgement 
is required in assessing the independence of the 
EA not to be impaired by provision of non-audit 
services;
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2. To review and consider the appointment, 
resignation or termination of the EA and make 
necessary recommendation to the Board for 
approval;

3. To deliberate on their fee and make necessary 
recommendations to the Board for approval;

4. To discuss with the EA, prior to the commencement 
of audit, the nature and scope of audit;

5. To review with the EA the audit plan, their 
evaluation of the systems of internal accounting 
controls, their audit report and the assistance 

6. To reviewed the external audit planning 
memorandum, outlining the audit scope, audit 
process and areas of emphasis based on the 
external auditors’ presentation of audit plan

statements before submission to the Board and 
announcements to the Bursa  Securities , focusing 
particularly on:

• any changes in accounting policies and 
practices;

• the going concern assumption;

• in compliance MFRS, International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia as well 
as the Listing Requirements and other legal 
requirements;

• to convene meeting at least once a year on 
any issues from the audits, with the external 
auditors separately without the presence of 
the Management; and

• to review the EA’s Management Letter and 
Management’s response.

5. Other Responsibilities of the ARC

1. To instruct the EA and IA that the ARC is to be 
advised accordingly if there are any areas 
that require their special attention including 

Management’s response.

2. To report its activities to the Board in such manner 
and at such times as it deems appropriate and 
report to the Bursa Securities where the ARC is of 
the view that a matter reported by it to the Board 
has not been satisfactorily resolved resulting in 
breach of the  Listing Requirements.

3. To review any related party transactions that 
may arise within the Group in complying with the 
Listing Requirements.

4. To consider and examine any other matters as 
the ARC considers appropriate or as instructed 
by the Board.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

year ended 30 June 2020 were as follows:-

the Group before approval by the Board for 
announcements to the Bursa Securities.

with external auditors’ management letter in relation 
to the audit and accounting issues arising from the 
audit and managements’ response.

3. Reviewed and discussed with the EA on their scope of 
work, audit plan and procedures.

4. Reviewed the related party transactions and any 

the Group and to ensure that such transactions are 
undertaken at arms’ length, on normal commercial 
terms which are not more favourable to the related 
parties than those generally available to the public 
and are not detrimental to the minority shareholders 
of the Company.

from management’s various reports, initiating further 
studies which it deemed necessary and reported 

appropriate recommendations.
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STATEMENT ON
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

INTRODUCTION

The Board Directors (“Board”) of Seacera Group 
Berhad (“Seacera” or “the Company”) is pleased to 
present its Statement on Risk Management and Internal 
Control which outlines the nature and scope of the risk 
management and internal control of the Group for the 

been prepared in accordance to Paragraph 15.26(b) 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s (“Bursa Securities”) 
Main Market Listing Requirements and guided by the 
Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: 
Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Guidelines”).

Risk Management and System of Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for managing the key risks of the 
Group and implementing appropriate internal control 
system to manage those risks. The Board reviewed 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of 
internal controls as during the year under review. The 
Board acknowledges that internal controls may not 
provide absolute assurance against all risks but it serves 
reasonable assurances and is designed to manage the 
likelihood and consequences of risk to an acceptable 
level. 

The following are the key elements of the Group’s risk 
management and system of internal controls:

• The management structure of the Group formally 

authority for all aspect of the Group’s affairs. Senior 
management and/or managers present their 
operational performance reviews as well as business 
plans and strategic measures in monthly meetings.

quarterly basis by the internal auditor and forwarded 
to the Audit Committee for review and deliberation.

• Clear terms of references of Board and its Committees

The Board is strongly committed to an effective risk 
management and internal control system guide by 
Company’s good governance and Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad’s Listing Requirements to further raise 
the level of transparency and accountability of the 
Company’s operations.

Establishment of Audit and Risk Management Committee 
(“ARC”)

The Board having reviewed the current composition of
the Board and taking into consideration of the current 
size and level of operation of the Group, is of the view 
that the combination of a Risk Management Committee 
with the Audit Committee is deemed a practical and 

effective approach and will maintain this practice.

The Board of Directors recognises that a robust risk 
management framework is important to correctly 
and timely identify. The Audit and Risk Management 
Committee (“ARC”) as adopted the ISO 31000 in assessing 
the risk. The ARC is supported by a team of key risk owners 
called the Risk Management Working Group (“RMWG”).

The Board via ARC would periodically measure the 
appropriate risk appetite which is then cascaded 

appropriately managed, a risk matrix is used to segmentise 
the risk.. Using the ISO 31000, risks are dissected to a level 
in which appropriate controls can be applied to. The Risk 
Management Working Group oversees the entire process 
andreport to the Risk Management Committee.

management and risk evaluation shall be implemented 
through Risk Management Report in order for this 

potential high risk events that could adversely impact the 
achievement of Company’s business objectivesshall be 
given more attention to. The ARC shall discover effective 
business strategies and implement them to control the 
risks.

Risk reviews will be conducted periodically to reassess the 
effectiveness of risk mitigation measures put in place and 
the adequacy of the systems. Corrective actions will be 
taken when necessary.
 

 

The Board has empowered the ARC to:

• introduce or conduct risk awareness, risk mitigation 
action plans and training on risk management for the 
employees.
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• continuously identify and evaluate the potential risk 
or potential event that could adversely impact the 
achievement of the Company business objectives.

• determine  the  impact  and consequence of the 
risk and recommend any strategy to reduce the 
likelihood of the risk to occur.

• conduct risk review periodically and reassess 
the effectiveness of risk mitigation measures and 
adequacy of the existing systems.

• adopt corrective actions, if necessary. 

Internal Audit Function

In accordance with the Malaysian Code on Corporate 
Governance, the Group in its efforts to provide adequate
and effective internal control system had appointed 
Messr Mac & Associates PLT (“MAC”), an independent 

its system of internal control. MAC acts as the internal 
auditors and reports directly to the ARC. 

MAC reviews and addresses critical business processes, 

effectiveness and adequacy of the existing state of 
internal control of the Group and recommends possible 
improvements to the internal control process. This is 
to provide reasonable assurance that such systems 
continue to operate satisfactorily and effectively within 
the Group. Follow up reviews were conducted to ensure 
that corrective actions have been implemented on a 
timely manner.
 
The activities and areas of review undertaken during the 

Activity 1

On 9 October 2019, the Internal Auditor conducted a Risk 
Management Committee training cum discussion session 
for the following issues:

a) Sustainability matters and activities

b) Corporate Governance

d) Commencement of Internal Control but Pending Risk 
Assessment Result

e) Basic Understanding of Section 17A of the MACC Act 
2016

Activity 2

On 15 October 2019, the Internal Auditor has given 

charter, company’s policies, terms of reference of the 
board committees, whistle blowing policies which were 
posted on the Company’s website.

of applying highest standard of corporate governance 
in line with Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.

Activity 3

On 22 November 2019, RMWG had performed the 
risk score card in identifying risk in each department 
especially risk involved in day to day operation.

1) Delay in payments from Customers

2) Materials ordered arrived late. This will result in 
business/sales/operation interruptions

3) To compete with the other trading companies that 
able to purchased huge quantity and offer cheapest 
price

 
Based on the internal audit reviews conducted, none 
of the weaknesses noted have resulted in material 
losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require 
separate disclosure in this Annual Report.

Conclusion

The Board is aware and cognizant of the fact that the 
Group’s system of internal control and risk management 
practices must continuously evolve to meet the changing 
and challenging business environment. Therefore, the 
Group will continue to take measures to strengthen the 
risk management and internal control system with a view 
to further enhance their effectiveness and to ensure new 
and additional risk arising from changes in the business 
and operating environment are managed within 
tolerable limits and timely dealt with. 

This Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
is made by the Board in accordance to its resolution 
dated 30 October 2020.

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control (continue)
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OTHER 
CORPORATE DISCLOSURE

1. Material Contracts

2. Non – Audit Fees

year ended  30 June 2020 amounted to RM100,000 of which RM25,000 was incurred by Seacera Group Berhad.

3. Utilisation of Proceeds

 Save for Employees’ Share Option Scheme where the proceeds were fully utilized for working capital, there were no. other 

4. Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”)

 The ESOS implemented on 30 June 2016 and the details of the ESOS are as follows:

a)  The total number of options granted, exercised, cancelled, and outstanding under the ESOS since its commencement 

Description
Number of Options

Grand Total 
‘000

Directors and 
Chief Executive ‘000

Granted 86,652 26,000

Exercised 71,950 21,500

Cancelled 14,702 4,500

Outstanding - -

Directors and Senior Management
Percentage

During the 
Financial Year

Since Commencement 
up to 30 June 2020

Aggregate maximum allocation 50% 50%

Actual option granted 78% 40%

(c)  The total number of ESOS granted and vested to the former Non-Executive Directors  is ten (10) million shares.

Non Executive Directors Number of Options Granted and Vested ‘000

Datuk Seri Mansor Bin Masikon 4,000

Norhanum Biinti Nordin 3,000

Halim @ AB Halim Bin Ismail 3,000
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DATE CORPORATE NEWS AND HIGHLIGHTS

24 September 2019 Seacera Group Berhad had made an offer of options on 24 September 2019 to eligible 
persons to subscribe for new shares in the Company under the Company’s Employees’ 
Share Option Scheme.

20 November 2019 Seacera Group Berhad and Sinar Tile Industries Sdn Bhd agreed to extend the MOU for 
3 months effective from 20 November 2019.

29 November 2019 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
34th Annual General Meeting of Seacera Group Berhad was held at KIP Hotel, Function
Room, Level 5, No. 77 Jalan Seri Utara, Off Jalan Ipoh, 68100 Kuala Lumpur at 10:00 a.m. 
and save for Ordinary Resolution 8 in respect of re-election of Dr Zulqarnain Bin Lukman, 
all resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 31 October 2019,
and the additional Ordinary Resolutions A to U had been tabled at the Company’s 34th 
Annual General Meeting. 

11 December 2019 Seacera Group Berhad has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) 
with Persatuan Kontraktor Bumiputera Malaysia (PKBM) on 11 December 2019 to explore 

supplies of tiles and other building materials to the members of PKBM.

12 December 2019 Seacera Group Berhad had made an offer of options on 12 December 2019 to eligible
persons to subscribe for new shares in the Company under the Company’s Employees’
Share Option Scheme.

19 February 2020 Seacera Group Berhad had obtained a Restraining Order on 19 February 2020 from High 
Court Kuala Lumpur for three (3) months until 18 May 2020, restraining all proceedings 
and actions brought against the Company and its other 3 subsidiaries except with leave 
of Court and subject to any terms that the Court may impose.

19 May 2020 Seacera Group Berhad had obtained an extension of Restraining Order (RO) for another 
three (3) months effective from 19 May 2020 until 18 August 2020.

3 June 2020 Seacera Polymer Sdn Bhd (SPSB), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Seacera Group Berhad, 
had on 3 June 2020 entered into an Exclusive Distribution Agreement (“Agreement”)
with Xidelang Holdings LTD (“XH LTD”) to appoint SPSB as a distributor for the sale and 
distribution of protective clothing products in all states of Malaysia. 

CORPORATE
CALENDAR
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CALENDAR
OF EVENTS

MBAM ONEBUILD 
EXHIBITION 2019

29 – 31 OCTOBER 2019
Kuala Lumpur 

Convention Center

SEACERA GROUP 
BERHAD

34TH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (AGM)

29 NOVEMBER 2019
held at KIP Hotel, 

Function Room, Level 5, 
No. 77 Jalan Seri Utara, 

Off Jalan Ipoh, 
68100 Kuala Lumpur

RISK MANAGEMENT & 
SUSTAINABILITY TRAINING

DIRECTORS & HEAD 
OF DEPARTMENTS

9 OCTOBER 2019
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MOU SIGNING CEREMONY
SEACERA GROUP BERHAD (SGB) & PERSATUAN KONTRAKTOR BUMIPUTRA MALAYSIA (PKBM)

11 DECEMBER 2019
Kuala Lumpur Golf & Country Club (KLGCC)

MAJLIS PENYERAHAN SUMBANGAN & PROGRAM INFAQ SEACERA 2020

Calendar of Events (continue)

PACKAGE INFAQ INCLUDED:

1. 3 BOXES OF FACEMASK (50 PIECES EACH BOX)

2. 7 BOTTLES OF 500ML HANDSANITIZERS

3. 2 UNITS OF CONTACTLESS THERMOMETER.
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48 Statements of Financial Position

49 Statements of Changes in Equity

50 - 51 Statements of Cash Flows

52 - 100 Notes to the Financial Statements
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Group

11,688,663 7,444,463

DIVIDENDS

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

Date of issue Class of shares No. of shares Issue Issued Price Consideration Purpose
RM RM

SHARE OPTIONS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  (continue)
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS

Group Company
2020 2020

RM RM

325,451

INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS

Group Company
2020 2020

RM RM

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  (continue)
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS

Group Company
2020 2020

RM RM

AUDITORS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  (continue)
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Director

Director

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  (continue)
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016

Director

Director

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251 (1) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

Commissioner for Oaths

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
AND STATUTORY DECLARATION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF SEACERA GROUP BERHAD

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Key audit matters
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statements

•

•

•

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF SEACERA GROUP BERHAD 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF SEACERA GROUP BERHAD 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

• 

•

•

•

•

•

Other Matters
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF SEACERA GROUP BERHAD 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)

RM RM

Revenue 4 2,258,991 773,493 13,661,468

5 (3,560,795) (1,893,274)

Gross loss (1,301,804) (1,119,781)

22,576,820 12,399,863

Distribution costs - -

(9,599,390) (3,584,703)

(99,593) (99,593)

11,576,033 7,595,786

- - 283,324

6 (657,969) (151,323)

7 10,918,064 7,444,463

Taxation 8 770,599 -

   period 11,688,663 7,444,463
Other comprehensive income,  
 net of tax

- 2,327,882 - -
Total comprehensive income / 
   (loss) for the year / period 11,688,663 7,444,463

11,688,663 7,444,463

- - -

   year / period 11,688,663 7,444,463
Basic earnings / (loss) per 
   ordinary share (sen) 2.53
Diluted earnings / (loss) per 
   ordinary share (sen) 2.53
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Group Company
2020 2020

RM RM
Non-current assets

11 847,351,607 847,331,216 40,522 131,824
12 - - 272,031,270
16 - - 33,029,025
14 618,736 - - -
26 - - 5,840,836

Total non-current assets 847,970,343 847,331,216 310,941,653

Current assets
Inventories 15 376,196 55,838 -

16 39,304,209 31,349,422 32,345,622
69,413 - -

17 79,980 30,562
Total current assets 39,829,798 31,435,822
Total assets 887,800,141 342,377,475

Capital and reserves
18 398,871,572 398,871,572

   preference shares 161,632,017 - -
153,282,830 (142,116,971)

21 (180,945) (180,945)
Total equity attributable to  
   shareholders of the
   company 713,605,474 256,573,656

- - -
Total equity 713,605,474 256,573,656

Non-current liabilities
24 339,089 - - -
25 308,702 -
27 - - 23,953,516
26 45,329,136 - -

Total non-current liabilities 45,976,927 23,953,516

Current liabilities
27 102,743,199 48,481,523

1,004,143 716,268
24 285,512 - - -
23 24,184,886 12,652,512

Total current liabilities 128,217,740 61,850,303
Total liabilities 174,194,667 187,233,711 85,803,819
Total equity and liabilities 887,800,141 342,377,475

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
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Share 
capital

Redeemable 
convertible 
preference 

shares
Total 

reserves
Treasury 
shares

 Attributable 
to owners 

of the 
Company

Non- 
controlling 

interest
Total 

Equity
Group Note RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

- - - -

Issuance of shares 18 - - - -
Loss for the 

- - -

- - 2,327,882 - 2,327,882 - 2,327,882

397,512,072 161,632,017 143,255,002 (180,945) 702,218,146 (1,660,835) 700,557,311
Issuance of shares 18 1,359,500 - - - 1,359,500 - 1,359,500

- - 11,688,663 - 11,688,663 - 11,688,663

   interest in an 

- - (1,660,835) - (1,660,835) 1,660,835 -
398,871,572 161,632,017 153,282,830 (180,945) 713,605,474 - 713,605,474

Share 
capital

Reserves 
distributable 

Retained Treasury 
shares

Total 
Equity

Company Note RM RM RM RM

3,838,188 356,662,242
Issuance of shares 18 - -

- -

397,512,072 (149,561,434) (180,945) 247,769,693
Issuance of shares 18 1,359,500 - - 1,359,500

- 7,444,463 - 7,444,463

398,871,572 (142,116,971) (180,945) 256,573,656

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020



Seacera Group Berhad • Annual Report 2020

50

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)

RM RM
CASH FLOWS FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

10,918,064 7,444,463 

     provision for retirement 
(755,390) 78,468 (700,227) 53,453

- -
-  Depreciation 988,752 91,302

- -
237,976 - - -

Inventories
2,413,347 1,263,798 14,622,622

1,777,208 759,368
(866,677) (747,951)

- - -
- - -

Interest expense 657,969 151,323 1,612,348
Interest income - -

   working capital changes 15,371,249 8,262,076

Changes in working capital
- - -

  customers - - -
Inventories (1,569,907) (1,319,636)

(2,845,249) 215,094,694
(12,863,771) 24,352,743 (7,170,663) 28,843,487

   generated from operations (1,907,678) 214,866,471
(311,462) (17,188)

- - 283,324
- -

1,318,350 (3,129) 33,585
Net cash (used in)/generated 
   from operating activities (900,790) 214,846,154

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
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Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)

RM RM
CASH FLOWS FROM 
   INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(1,009,143) -

- -
Increase in investment in 

- - (216,446,000)
Net cash used in investing  
  activities (1,009,143) (216,446,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM 
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES

   of new shares 1,359,500 1,359,500

- - 13,735,441

- 282,254 - 282,254

   acceptances - -

- -

27,806 15,126 -

- - - -

   activities 1,387,306 1,359,500
Net (decrease)/increase in 
cash 
   and cash equivalent (522,627) (240,346)
Cash and cash equivalents 
   brought forward (9,925,340) (4,912,202)
Cash and cash equivalents  
   carried forward (Note 17) (10,447,967) (5,152,548)

7,059 - 7,059 -

72,921 23,503

(10,527,947) (5,183,110)

(10,447,967) (5,152,548)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

1.  CORPORATE INFORMATION
 

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 

 

 
 Going concern assumptions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date yet to be 

•

 

(i)  As a lessee

•

•

•

(ii)  As a lessor

Standards issued but not yet effective

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

(b)  Basis of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries
 

(ii)  Business Combination

Acquisitions on or after 1 January 2011

 Acquisitions before 1 January 2011

(iii)  Changes in Group composition
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(iv)  Transactions eliminated on consolidation

(c)  Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Recognition and measurement
 

(ii)  Subsequent costs

 Cost model

 Revaluation model
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

 

(iii)  Depreciation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(d)  Leased assets

(i)  Finance lease

(ii)  Operating lease

 

(e)  Foreign currency

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

(ii)  Foreign Currency Transactions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

2020
RM

4.280
3.072
2.945
4.810

(g)  Financial assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(ii)  Amortised cost and effective interest method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(iv)  Equity instruments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(h) Inventories

(i)  Construction work-in-progress

(j)  Cash and cash equivalents

(k)  Treasury shares
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(iii)  Share-based payment transactions

(m)  Provisions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(n)  Leases

 As a lessee

(i)  Right-of-use assets

(iii)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(iv)  Extension options

As a lessor

(o)  Financial liabilities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(p)  Dividends to Shareholders of the Company

(q)  Revenue recognition

(i)  Goods sold

(ii)  Construction contract

(iii)  Services

(r)  Borrowing costs



Seacera Group Berhad • Annual Report 2020

67

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(s)  Income tax

(t)  Earnings per share

(u)  Segment reporting

(v) Fair value measurement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

3.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
 

a)  Judgements made in applying accounting policies
 

(i)  Financial guarantee contracts

b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)  Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

(iv)  Deferred tax assets

4. REVENUE

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)
RM RM

2,258,991 773,493 13,661,468

- - -

2,258,991 773,493 13,661,468
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

5. COST OF SALES

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)
RM RM

3,560,795 1,893,274

- - -

3,560,795 1,893,274

6. FINANCE COSTS

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)
RM RM

426,928 62,051

148,694 6,925

80,584 252,688 80,584

(12) 1,386,837 (12)

- 53,432 - -
Others 1,775 1,775

657,969 151,323 1,612,348
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)

RM RM

100,000 25,000

   - Depreciation 988,752 91,302

237,976 - - -

- -

- -

- - -

- - -

1,777,208 759,368

(866,677) (747,951)

Inventories

2,413,347 1,263,798 14,622,622

325,451 283,905

1,584,939 1,658,855 32,083 614,238

53,000 53,000

Interest income - -

- -

(20,838,672) - 12,328,892 -

(109,237) - - -

-

196,398 - 346,688

2,033,120 -

(755,390) 78,468 - 53,453
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)

RM RM

95 -

(Over)/Underprovision in prior year:

(770,694) - - -

(770,599) -

Group Company
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to
1.7.2019

to
30.6.2020

to

(12 months) (12 months)

RM RM

10,918,064 7,444,463

Taxation at Malaysia statutory tax 
   rate of 24% (2019 : 24%) 2,620,335 1,786,671

(5,324,004) - (2,958,934) -

       for tax purposes 1,596,876 766,855

1,106,888 - 405,408 -

(770,694) - - -

(770,599) -

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

a)  Basic earnings per share
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

b) Diluted earnings per share

10.  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNELS’ COMPENSATION

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

Directors
325,451 283,905

1,584,939 1,658,855 32,083 614,238

53,000 53,000

1,963,390 368,988

Other key personnel Management

386,037 -

11.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Freehold

land
Leasehold 

land

Freehold
buildings/ 
Leasehold 
buildings

Motor 
vehicles

Plant and 
machinery

Fixtures 

equipment Total
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM

Cost

-
- -

- - 2,327,882 - - - 2,327,882

- - -

-
As at 30 June 
2019 817,364,186 - 33,298,196 1,009,662 1,603,224 - 853,275,268
Effect of prior  
   adjustment (27,119,925) 27,119,925 - - - - -
As at 30 June 
2019  (Restated) 790,244,261 27,119,925 33,298,196 1,009,662 1,603,224 - 853,275,268

Additions - 1,009,143 - - - - 1,009,143
As at 30 June 
2020 790,244,261 28,129,068 33,298,196 1,009,662 1,603,224 - 854,284,411
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Group
Freehold

land
Leasehold 

land

Freehold
buildings/ 
Leasehold 
buildings

Motor 
vehicles

Plant and 
machinery

Fixtures 

and 
equipment Total

RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
Accumulated 
Depreciation

- 76,286,665 5,254,322
Depreciation 

- - 415,557 176,288 232,361

- - -

- -
As at 30 June 
2019 - - 1,493,966 945,845 1,535,207 - 3,975,018
Effect of prior 
year adjustment 1,969,034 - - - - 1,969,034
As at 30 June 
2019 (Restated) 1,969,034 1,493,966 945,845 1,535,207 - 5,944,052
Depreciation 
charge during 
the year - 281,291 616,159 57,802 33,500 - 988,752
As at 30 June 
2020 - 2,250,325 2,110,125 1,003,647 1,568,707 - 6,932,804

Net book Value

63,817 - 847,331,216
As at 30 June 
2020 790,244,261 25,878,743 31,188,071 6,015 34,517 - 847,351,607

Company
Motor 

vehicles
Plant and 
machinery

Fixtures 

equipment Total
RM RM RM RM

Cost
3,447,847 57,256,246

-

-

As at 30 June 2019 729,351 1,603,225 - 2,332,576

Additions - - - -

As at 30 June 2020 729,351 1,603,225 - 2,332,576



Seacera Group Berhad • Annual Report 2020

75

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Company
Motor 

vehicles
Plant and 
machinery

Fixtures 

equipment Total
RM RM RM RM

Accumulated 
Depreciation

31,688,534 3,352,788

133,888

-

As at 30 June 2019 665,544 1,535,208 - 2,200,752

57,802 33,500 - 91,302

As at 30 June 2020 723,346 1,568,708 - 2,292,054

Net book Value

- 131,824

As at 30 June 2020 6,005 34,517 - 40,522

12.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2020
RM

55,585,270
216,446,000

-

272,031,270

 

Name Principle activities Effective
equity interest

2020
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Dormant 100%

Dormant 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Name Principle activities Effective
equity interest

2020

Subsidiary company of Seacera Properties Sdn. Bhd.
100%

Subsidiary company of Duta Nilai Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
100%

 

13.  GOODWILL

Group
2020
RM

-
-

- -

14.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

- - - -

856,712 - - -

(237,976) - - -

618,736 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

- - - -

17,889 - - -

17,889 - - -

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

Depreciation expense of 
237,976 - - -

17,889 - - -

   statement of comprehensive income 255,865 - - -

15.  INVENTORIES

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

At cost:
- -

2,789,543 1,319,636

- -

- 2,373,886 -

- 3,114 - -

- -

2,789,543 1,319,636 14,622,622

(2,413,347) (1,263,798)

376,196 55,838 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2020 2020

Current RM RM
Trade

1,392,852 515,534

(732,589) -

660,263 515,534 -

Non-trade

39,554,509 31,459,200

134,056 138,256 134,056

- - -

39,688,565 37,764,436 31,593,256 32,345,622

(1,044,619) - (759,368) -

38,643,946 30,833,888 32,345,622

39,304,209 31,349,422 32,345,622

Non-current

- - 33,029,025

39,304,209 64,378,447

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

866,677 1,155,683 747,951

732,589 -

(866,677) (747,951)

732,589 866,677 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

 

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

- - - -

1,044,619 - 759,368 -

- - - -

1,044,619 - 759,368 -
 

17.  CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

72,921 23,503
7,059 - 7,059 -

79,980 30,562

(10,527,947) (5,183,110)

(10,447,967) (5,152,548)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

18.  SHARE CAPITAL

Group / Company
2020

Number of 
Ordinary 
Shares

Monetary 
Amount Shares

Units RM Units
Issued and fully paid

474,623,845 397,512,072

7,100,000 1,359,500
- -

- -
- -

   - Share Issuance - -

481,723,845 398,871,572 474,623,845

19.  REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

Group 
2020

Number of 
Ordinary 
Shares

Monetary 
Amount Shares

Units RM Units
Issued and fully paid

161,632,017 161,632,017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

20.  RESERVES

Reserves
Non-Distributable Distributable

Revaluation 
Reserves

Warrant 
Reserves

Retained Total
Reserves

RM RM RM RM
Group

1,414,743
- -

- -

2,327,882 - - 2,327,882
- 1,414,743 -

Issuance of warrant reserve - -

308,936,275 1,400,000 (167,081,273) 143,255,002

- - 11,688,663 11,688,663

- - (1,660,835) (1,660,835)

308,936,275 1,400,000 (157,053,445) 153,282,830

Reserves
Non-

Distributable 
Warrant 

Reserves

Distributable 
Retained Total

Reserves
RM RM RM

Company
1,414,743 2,423,445 3,838,188

-
1,414,743 -

Issuance of warrant reserve -

1,400,000 (150,961,434) (149,561,434)

- 7,444,463 7,444,463

1,400,000 (143,516,971) (142,116,971)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

21.  TREASURY SHARES

22.  WARRANT RESERVE

23.  LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

Short term borrowings

6,049,945 1,362,408
1,286,694 1,286,694
6,320,300 4,820,300

10,527,947 5,183,110

24,184,886 12,652,512

24,184,886 12,652,512
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

 

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

24,184,886 12,652,512

 

Cash changes Non-cash changes
1 July 2019 30 June 2020

RM RM RM RM RM
Group

6,022,139 27,806 426,928 (426,928) 6,049,945
1,286,694 - 80,584 (80,584) 1,286,694
6,320,300 - 148,694 (148,694) 6,320,300

13,629,133 27,806 656,206 (656,206) 13,656,939

Cash changes Non-cash changes
1 January 2018 30 June 2019

RM RM RM RM RM

- non-current 5,722,314 15,126
- current - - -

-

- non-current 514,717 282,254 252,688
- current - - -

Cash Changes Non-cash Changes
1 July 2019 30 June 2020

RM RM RM RM RM
Company

1,362,408 - 62,051 (62,051) 1,362,408
1,286,694 - 80,584 (80,584) 1,286,694
4,820,300 - 6,925 (6,925) 4,820,300
7,469,402 - 149,560 (149,560) 7,469,402
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Cash Changes Non-cash Changes
1 January 2018 30 June 2019

RM RM RM RM RM

- non-current 1,121,642 - - -
- current - -

-

- non-current 514,717 -
- current - -

757,141

 

per annum.

24.  LEASE LIABILITY

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

Current

285,512 - - -

285,512 - - -
Non-current

339,089 - - -
  339,089 - - -

624,601 - - -

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

Maturity of lease liability:
285,512 - - -

339,089 - - -
624,601 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

25. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

in statement of the
308,702 -

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

1,064,092 700,227

   income (755,390) 78,468 - 53,453
- -
- - (700,227) -

308,702 -

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

Discount rate 7.00% 7.00%
5.00% 5.00%

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

- 78,468 - 53,453
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

26.  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

43,907,827 (5,840,836)

comprehensive income

1,421,309 - -

1,421,309 - -

- - - -

- - - -
45,329,136 (5,840,836)

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

51,169,972 - -
(5,840,836) (5,840,836)

45,329,136 (5,840,836)

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

(a)  Deferred Tax Liabilities

- -
- - - -

51,233,005 - -
51,233,005 -
(1,051,326) -

50,181,679 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

(b)  Deferred Tax Assets
(1,051,326) -
(1,051,326) -
1,051,326 -

Total Deferred Tax Liability
      / (Assets) After Offsetting - - -

Group
2020
RM

11,387,187 6,775,154
71,946,218
83,333,405 78,721,372

27.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2020 2020

Current RM RM
Trade

14,871,634 13,811,371 13,439,186

Non-trade
55,085,645 3,103,080
32,785,920 31,939,257

- - -
  87,871,565 35,042,337 44,151,677

102,743,199 48,481,523

Non-Current

- - 23,953,516
- - 23,953,516

102,743,199 72,435,039
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

28.  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

Trading
Property/ 

Construction Elimination
RM RM RM RM

2020
2,258,991 - - 2,258,991

11,088,454 (406,813) 894,392 11,576,033

Interest expense (657,969) - - (657,969)

10,430,485 (406,813) 894,392 10,918,064

Tax expense 770,624 (25) - 770,599

11,201,109 (406,838) 894,392 11,688,663

411,564,301 1,358,235,020 (881,999,180) 887,800,141

143,526,294 544,763,208 (514,094,835) 174,194,667

988,752 - - 988,752
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Tiles
Property/ 

Construction Elimination
RM RM RM RM

2019

Interest expense -

Income Tax expense -

187,233,711

-

Geographical segments

Revenue
2020
RM

2,258,991
-

2,258,991

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 Identity of related parties
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

 Related party transactions

Revenue
2020
RM

-
- 1,815,335

-
- 327,171

-

30.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

a)  Credit risk

b)  Liquidity risk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

On demand or 
within one year years Total

Group RM RM RM
30 June 2020

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 102,743,199 - 102,743,199

Bank overdrafts 10,527,947 - 10,527,947

Term loans 6,049,945 - 6,049,945

Hire purchase liabilities 1,286,694 - 1,286,694

Bankers’ acceptances 6,320,300 - 6,320,300

126,928,085 - 126,928,085

30 June 2019

Financial liabilities:
-

-

-

-

-

-

On demand or 
within one year years Total

Company RM RM RM
30 June 2020

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 72,435,039 - 72,435,039

Bank overdrafts 5,183,110 - 5,183,110

Term loans 1,362,408 - 1,362,408

Hire purchase liabilities 1,286,694 - 1,286,694

Bankers’ acceptances 4,820,300 - 4,820,300

85,087,551 - 85,087,551

30 June 2019

Financial liabilities:
-

-

-

-

-

-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

c)  Interest rate risk

d)  Currency risk

 Foreign currency risk sensitivity

Group Company
2020 2020
Functional currencies 

Ringgit Malaysia
Functional currencies 

Ringgit Malaysia
RM RM

Trade and other receivables
321,036 230,733 223,186
528,013 431,254
849,049 836,828 661,987

Cash and bank balances
2,372 101

167 271 167 167
2,539 268 268
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

31.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Company
Carrying 
Amount L&R / (OL) Carrying 

Amount L&R / (OL)

RM RM
2020
Financial assets

39,304,209 1,745,107 31,349,422 1,385,644
79,980 3,519 30,562 1,358

2019
Financial assets

32,345,622

2020
Financial liabilities

102,743,199 4,520,701 48,481,523 2,133,187
24,184,886 1,078,659 12,652,512 561,772

2019
Financial liabilities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

2020
Carrying 
Amount

Fair 
Value

Group RM RM
Financial assets

39,304,209 39,304,209
79,980 79,980

39,384,189 39,384,189

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at 
   amortised cost

10,527,947 10,527,947
6,049,945 6,049,945
1,286,694 1,286,694
6,320,300 6,320,300

102,743,199 102,743,199

126,928,085 126,928,085

2020
Carrying 
Amount

Fair 
Value

Company RM RM
Financial assets

64,378,447 64,378,447
30,562 30,562

64,409,009 64,409,009

272,031,270 272,031,270

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at 
   amortised cost

5,183,110 5,183,110
1,362,408 1,362,408
1,286,694 1,286,694
4,820,300 4,820,300

72,435,039 72,435,039

85,087,551 85,087,551
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

 Financial assets and liabilities with published price in active markets

Non-current borrowings

Unquoted equity instruments

32.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Group Company
2020 2020
RM RM

Debts
23 24,184,886 12,652,512

27 102,743,199 72,435,039

17 (79,980) (30,562)
Net debt 126,848,105 85,056,989

713,605,474 256,573,656

0.17 0.33
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

33.  SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

33.1 PRACTICE NOTE 17 (“PN17”)

33.2 CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) PANDEMIC
 

33.3 RESTRAINING ORDER (“RO”) STATUS

33.4 WINDING UP PETITION

33.5 MONEY LENDING LICENSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

34.  MATERIAL LITIGATIONS

Seacera Properties 

Seacera Group 

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Group 

Seacera Properties 

GTS Contractor 

     



Seacera Group Berhad • Annual Report 2020

98

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Othman
-

Seacera Group -

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Group 

GTS Contractor 

GTS Contractor -

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Ceramics 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Group 

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Group Berha

-

the Court

Seacera Cermics 

Seacera Properties 

Seacera Group 

Seacera Ceramics 

Seacera Ceramics 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR END 30 JUNE 2020

Seacera Ceramics 

35.  APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.  PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

As previously
stated Adjustment

RM

847,331,216

37.  COMPARATIVES
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Location Tenure Description 

Use Date

15,328

shop for 
42

13 827

13 827

13 827

13 827

LIST OF PROPERTIES



Seacera Group Berhad • Annual Report 2020

102

Location Tenure Description 

Use Date

13 827

13 827

17 October 775 55,283

783,324

7,676,157

114,614

28 
September 

Total 835,872,070

List of Properties 
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
as at 23 SEPTEMBER 2020

SEACERA GROUP BERHAD - ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL (7073)

Issued No. of Shares/Unit : 481,723,845 (inclusive of 306,000 treasure shares)

Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares 

Voting rights : One vote for one ordinary share 

1.  DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULES OF EQUITY SECURITY BY NATIONALITY & INCORPORATION TYPE AS AT 23/09/2020

No. of % No. of % of

Size of Holdings Shareholders Shares/Unit Shares/Unit

Less than 100 shares 373 12.08 17,425 0.00

100 – 1,000 shares 304 9.84 150,861 0.03

1,001 – 10,000 shares 1,372 44.42 6,917,040 1.44

10,001 – 100,000 shares 811 26.25 27,329,049 5.68

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares 228 7.38 366,903,470 76.21

5% and above of issued shares 1 0.03 80,100,000 16.64

Total 3,089 100.00 481,417,845 100.00

Total issued shares as at 23 September 2020 : 481,723,845
Treasury shares as per Record of Depositors dated  23 September 2020 : 306,000

2.  OWNERSHIP OF ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AS AT 23/09/2020

No. of % No. of % of

CATEGORY OF HOLDERS Shareholders of Holders Shares/Unit Shares/Unit

INDIVIDUAL 2,481 80.32 232,512,020 48.30

A - BANKS/FINANCE COMPANIES 0 0.00 0 0.00

B - TRUSTS/FOUNDATION/CHARITY 1 0.03 118,000 0.02

C - PRIVATE/LIMITED COMPANY 26 0.84 113,182,700 23.51

D - PENSION FUNDS & CHARITY 0 0.00 0 0.00

E - OTHERS 0 0.00 0 0.00

GOV. AGENCIES/INSTITUTIONS 1 0.03 900,000 0.19

NOMINEES 580 18.78 134,705,125 27.98

Total 3,089 100.00 481,417,845 100.00
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Analysis of Shareholdings 

as at 23 SEPTEMBER 2020

3.  DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
(as per register of directors’ shareholdings as at 23 September 2020)

Direct Interest Indirect Interest  

No Name No. of Shares  % No. of Shares    % 

1. Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar 0 0.00 0 0.00

2. Chua Yeong Lin 0 0.00 0 0.00

3. Nicholas Wong Yew Khid 0 0.00 0 0.00

4. Mah Soon Chai 0 0.00 0 0.00

0 0.00 0 0.00

4. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(as per register of substantial shareholders as at 23 September 2020)

Direct Interest Indirect Interest  

No. Name No. of Shares  % No. of Shares    % 

1. Asiabio Capital Sdn Bhd 92,273,000 19.17 0 0.00

2. Fintec Global Berhad 0 0.00 92,273,000 19.17

92,273,000 19.17 92,273,000 19.17

5.  THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (as per Record of Depositors as at 23 September 2020)

(Without Aggregating Securities from Different Securities Accounts Belonging to the same Registered Holders).

No. of Percentage

No. Name Shares %

1. ASIABIO CAPITAL SDN BHD 80,100,000 16.64
2. TAI YOK YEN 22,019,600 4.57

3. M & A NOMINEE (ASING) SDN BHD (320470H)
SANSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED FOR SFG INVESTMENT LIMITED

18,100,000 3.76

4. TA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (268290H)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ONG ENG TAIK

15,505,000 3.22

5. MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (284597P)
EXEMPT AN FOR MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD (A/C 649063)

15,173,000 3.15

6. PIONG YON WEE 14,860,900 3.09

7. MAK HON LEONG. 14,350,000 2.98

8. M & A NOMINEE (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (320471T)
SANSTON FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED FOR TAY BEN SENG,BENSON

12,100,000 2.51

9. MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD   (284592K)
EXEMPT AN FOR MAYBANK KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD (A/C 648849)

12,000,000 2.49

10. JS PORTFOLIO SDN.BHD. 10,840,500 2.25
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No. of Percentage

No. Name Shares %

11. CIMB ISLAMIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (8424H)
PMB INVESTMENT BERHAD FOR MAJLIS AMANAH RAKYAT

10,000,000 2.08

12. LAI TZE JIN 9,020,900 1.87

13. LAI YEE VOON 8,366,600 1.74

14. FANTASTIC FORTRESS SDN BHD 7,725,563 1.61

15. ONG KIAN HUAT. 7,647,800 1.59

16. HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD (4381U)
EXEMPT AN FOR CREDIT SUISSE (SWITZERLAND) LTD

7,500,000 1.56

17. CHAN CHEE HONG 6,685,000 1.39

18. QUEK SOON TIANG 6,478,200 1.35

19. ISMAIL BIN OTHMAN 6,176,400 1.28

20. WEE KOK CHUAN 5,839,400 1.21

21. QUEK YONG WAH 5,358,700 1.11

22. HONG WEA PING 5,154,100 1.07

23. TA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (268290H)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NG SHIAU HUI

5,061,100 1.05

24. QUEK SOON TIANG 4,768,200 0.99

25. PANG KIA FATT 4,606,200 0.96

26. KENANGA NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD (280043U)
EXEMPT AN FOR PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD (CLIENT ACCOUNT)

4,535,800 0.94

27. KRETELLA ASIA LIMITED 4,500,000 0.93

28. TA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (268290H)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ONG JIE SEAK

4,145,000 0.86

29. AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (102918T)
AYAMKUAT MAJU (KUALA LUMPUR) SDN BHD

3,372,000 0.70

30. I-ZEN RESIDENCES SDN. BHD. 3,350,000 0.69

Total 335,339,963 69.64

Analysis of Shareholdings  

as at 23 SEPTEMBER 2020
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SEACERA GROUP BERHAD - WARRANT C (7073WC)
No. of Warrants  : 143,765,680

Exercise Price of Warrants  : RM1.00 

Exercise Period of Warrants  : 24 Jan 2018 to 21 Jan 2021

Exercise Rights : Each warrant entitles the holders to subscribe for one new ordinary 
share in the Company 

Voting Rights at Meetings of Warrant Holders : One vote per warrant on a poll 

1.  DISTRIBUTION OF WARRANT HOLDINGS as at 23 September 2020

No. of % of No. of % of issued

Size of Holdings  Warrant holders  Warrant holders Warrants Warrants

Less than 100 warrants 454 16.29 12,205 0.01

100 – 1,000  warrants 573 20.55 349,661 0.24

1,001 – 10,000  warrants 1,154 41.39 4,426,788 3.08

10,001 – 100,000  warrants 423 15.17 16,636,855 11.57

100,001 to less than 5% of issued  warrants 183 6.56 102,840,171 71.53

5% and above of issued  warrants 1 0.04 19,500,000 13.57

Total 2,788 100.00 143,765,680 100.00

No. of % No. of % of
CATEGORY OF HOLDERS Warrant holders Warrant holders  Warrant/Unit Warrant/Unit

INDIVIDUAL 2,231 80.02 93,034,606 64.71
A - BANKS/FINANCE COMPANIES 0 0.00 0 0.00
B - TRUSTS/FOUNDATION/CHARITY 0 0.00 0 0.00
C - PRIVATE/LIMITED COMPANY 15 0.54 1,674,134 1.17
D - PENSION FUNDS & CHARITY 0 0.00 0 0.00
E - OTHERS 0 0.00 0 0.00
GOV. AGENCIES/INSTITUTIONS 0 0.00 0 0.00
NOMINEES 542 19.44 49,056,940 34.12

Total 2,788 100.00 143,765,680 100.00

2.  DIRECTORS’ WARRANT HOLDINGS
(as per register of directors’ warrant holdings as at 23 September 2020)

No. of Warrants Held

No. Name of Directors Direct % Indirect    % 

1. Dato’ Dr Azirul Salihin Bin Anuar 0 0.00 0 0.00

2. Chua Yeong Lin 0 0.00 0 0.00

3. Nicholas Wong Yew Khid 0 0.00 0 0.00

4. Mah Soon Chai 0 0.00 0 0.00

0 0.00 0 0.00

ANALYSIS OF WARRANT C HOLDINGS
as at 23 SEPTEMBER 2020
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3.  THIRTY LARGEST WARRANT HOLDERS (as per Record of Depositors as at 23 September 2020)

(Without Aggregating Securities from Different Securities Accounts Belonging to the same Registered Holders).

No. of Percentage

No. Name Warrants %

1. TA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (268290H)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ONG ENG TAIK

19,500,000 13.56

2. NG WAI KIAN 5,002,300 3.48

3. LIM HUAT 4,865,000 3.38

4. ONG ENG TAIK 4,000,000 2.78

5. YIP CHOONG RUN 3,744,400 2.60

6. CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (297928D)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YEONG CHOON HONG (MM0434)

2,900,000 2.02

7. HARYATI BINTI MOHD SARKAWI 2,500,000 1.74

8. ONG WEE SHYONG 2,500,000 1.74

9. LIM KCAT GUAN 2,026,600 1.41

10. FADHIL BIN AHMAD 2,000,000 1.39

11. LAU HUI KING 2,000,000 1.39

12. MAK HON LEONG 1,999,500 1.39

13. INTER-PACIFIC EQUITY NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN.BHD. (178048D)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG PENG HO

1,806,200 1.26

14. TONG TIN HENG 1,800,000 1.25

15. LAU CHEAN TING 1,620,100 1.13

16. NG SIAU FONG 1,500,000 1.04

17. ONG SENG GUAN 1,500,000 1.04

18. KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (16778M)
RAKUTEN TRADE SDN BHD FOR TAN PANG YOONG

1,300,000 0.90

19. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (258939H)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE CHUNG SING

1,201,700 0.84

20. YEONG CHOON HONG 1,200,000 0.83

21. MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (284597P)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR VINCENT PHUA CHEE EE

1,112,700 0.77

22. REBECCA LIM WANG LIN 1,080,000 0.75

23. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (258939H)
SHAH RIZAL BIN MOHD ZAWAWI

1,055,000 0.73

24. LIZALINA CHEW SIN WEI 1,040,500 0.72

25. KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (16778M)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ANG POON HENG

1,000,000 0.70

26. TONG TIN HENG 1,000,000 0.70

27. CHAN WAH @ CHAM KAM WAH 990,000 0.69

28. KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (16778M)
RAKUTEN TRADE SDN BHD FOR THEENA THAYALAN A/L K RAJALINGAM

950,000 0.66

29. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD (258939H)
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHEW BEN BEN

835,080 0.58

30. LIM TEE PHEOW 800,000 0.56

Total 74,829,080 52.03

Analysis of Warrant C Holdings 

as at 23 SEPTEMBER 2020
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NOTICE OF THIRTY-FIFTH 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Thirty-Fifth Annual 
General Meeting (“35th AGM”) of the Company 

will be conducted on a fully virtual basis from the Broadcast Venue at 
Level 4, Menara Lien Hoe, No. 8, Persiaran Tropicana, Tropicana Golf 
& Country Resort, 47410 Petaling Jaya, Selangor on Wednesday, 2 
December 2020 at 11.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof for the 
purpose of transacting the following businesses:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
 

1. 
June 2020 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Please refer to 
Explanatory Notes to 
Ordinary Business

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of up to an amount of RM497,000 for 
the period from the 35th AGM up to the 36th AGM.

Ordinary Resolution 1

3. 
for the period commencing from the 35th AGM up to the 36th AGM.

Ordinary Resolution 2

4. To re-elect the Mr Nicholas Wong Yew Khid, who retires pursuant to Article 67 of 
the Company’s Articles of Association.

Ordinary Resolution 3

5. To re-appoint Messrs Al Jafree Salihin Kuzaimi as External Auditors of the Company Ordinary Resolution 4

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS  

6. Renewal authority to allot and issue shares in general pursuant to Sections 75 
and 76 of the Companies Act, 2016 

Ordinary Resolution 5

“THAT subject to passing of Special Resolution 1 and subject to the Companies 
Act, 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution of the Company, the Main Market Listing 
Requirements (“Listing Requirements”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”), Additional Temporary Relief Measures to Listed Corporations 
for Covid-19, issue by Bursa Securities on 16 April 2020 and subject to the 
approvals of the relevant governmental/regulatory authorities, the Directors be 
and are hereby authorised and empowered pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of 
the Act, to issue and allot shares in the Company, at any time to such persons 
and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors 

of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed twenty per 
centum (20%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding 
treasury shares) at any point in time (“20% General Mandate”); AND THAT the 
Directors be and are hereby also empowered to obtain approval from the 
Bursa Securities for the listing and quotation of the additional shares so issued 
pursuant to the 20% General Mandate on Bursa Securities; 

AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the 
next AGM of the Company”.
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7. Proposed Adoption of New Constitution

“THAT approval be and is hereby given for the Company to revoke the existing 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company with immediate 
effect and in place thereof, the proposed new Constitution of the Company 
as set out in the Appendix I to Shareholders accompanying the Company’s 

adopted as the Constitution of the Company AND THAT the Directors of the 

and/or amendment as may be required by the relevant authorities and to do 
all acts and things and take all such steps as may be considered necessary to 
give full effect to the foregoing.”

Special Resolution 1

8. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TAN TONG LANG (MAICSA 7045482)
VIMALRAJ A/L SHANMUGAM (MAICSA 7068140)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
Date: 31 October 2020

NOTES:

1. Please refer to the Administrative Guide for the procedures to register and participate in the virtual meeting. Shareholders will not be allowed 
to attend the 35th AGM in person at the Broadcast Venue on the day of the meeting.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote in his stead. 

shall have the same rights as the member to speak at the General Meeting. 

represented by each proxy. 

securities account (“omnibus account”) there is no limit to the number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in 
respect of each omnibus account it holds.

one (1) proxy in respect of each Securities Account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said Securities 
Account.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the 

South Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the 
meeting or any adjournment thereof.

8. In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 25 November 2020 shall be entitled to 
attend, speak and vote at this 35th AGM.
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Explanatory Notes to Ordinary Business:

 This item of the Agenda is for discussion purposes only, as Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 does not require the 
shareholders to formally approve the Audited Financial Statements. Therefore, this item will not be put forward for voting.

Explanatory Notes to Special Business:

(a) The proposed Ordinary Resolution 5 is a renewal general mandate and if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company 
to allot and issue new shares in the Company at any time, to such person or persons, upon such terms and conditions and 

number of shares issued pursuant to this General Mandate, when aggregated with the total number of any such shares 
issued during the preceding twelve (12) months, does not exceed 20% of the total number of issued shares of the Company 
at the time of issue. This General Mandate, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of 
the next AGM of the Company. The previous mandate which was obtained at the last AGM held on 29 November 2019 
was not utilised and therefore, no proceeds were raised.

 The 20% General Mandate is pursuant to directive letter from Bursa Securities dated 16 April 2020 in relation to a temporary 
relief measures in view of the trying and challenging times due to the Covid-19 pandemic for listed issuer to seek a higher 
general mandate of not more than 20% of the total number of issued shares (excluding treasury shares) instead of 10%.

of the Group, the Board would like to procure approval for the 20% General Mandate, inclusive of the Extended Utilisation 
Period, pursuant to Section 76(4) of the Act, from its shareholders at the forthcoming 35th AGM of the Company.

 The Directors of the Company, after due consideration, is of the opinion that in the face of unprecedented challenges 

raise funds expeditiously other than incurring additional interest costs as compared to bank borrowings, thereby allowing 

or future projects/investments to ensure the long-term sustainability of the Company.

of the opinion that the 20% General Mandate is in the best interest of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(b) Special Resolution 1- Proposed Adoption of New Constitution

 The Special Resolution, if passed, will align the Constitution of the Company with the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) which 
came into force on 31 January 2017, the updated provisions of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad and the prevailing statutory and regulatory requirements as well as to provide clarity and 
consistency with the amendments that arise from the Act and MMLR. The proposed new Constitution is set out in the 
Appendix I accompanying the Annual Report to shareholders.

vote either in person or by proxy.
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